
HEALTHCARE AND REGULATORY SUBCOMMITTEE 

Department of Insurance 

CONTENTS 
Agenda ........................................................................................................................................ 2 

Minutes ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

Agency Overview .......................................................................................................................... 7 

Agency Presentation .................................................................................................................... 9 



AGENDA 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pursuant to Committee Rule 6.8, S.C. ETV shall be allowed access for internet streaming whenever technologically feasible. 

AGENDA 

Healthcare and Regulatory 
Subcommittee 

Chairman John R. McCravy, III 

The Honorable Lucas Atkinson 
The Honorable Kathy Landing 

The Honorable Annie E. McDaniel 
The Honorable Marvin “Mark” Smith 

Wednesday, July 8, 2025 
10:30 AM 

Room 110 – Blatt Building 
 
 

I. Approval of Minutes of March 28, 2025 Meeting 
 

II. Discussion of the study of the Department of Insurance 
 
III. Adjournment 

 

 

 



MINUTES 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Chair Jeffrey E. “Jeff” Johnson Vice-Chair Chris Wooten 

Lewis Carter 
Research Director 

Roland Franklin 
Legal Counsel 

Charlie LaRosa 
Research Analyst 

Riley McCullough 
Research Analyst 

Cathy Greer 
Administrative Coordinator 

Post Office Box 11867 
Columbia, South Carolina 29211 

Telephone: (803) 212-6810  Fax: (803) 212-6811 
Room 228 Blatt Building 

Phillip Bowers 
Gary S. Brewer Jr. 

Kambrell H. Garvin 
Leon Douglas “Doug” Gilliam 

 

Wendell K. Jones 
Kathy Landing 

John R. McCravy III 
Annie E. McDaniel 

Timothy A. “Tim” McGinnis 
Travis A. Moore 

Scott Montgomery 
Michael Rivers 

Richard B. “Blake” Sanders 
Marvin “Mark” Smith 

Robert Williams 

Lucas Atkinson 
William H. Bailey 

Paul B. Wickensimer 

MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, March 28, 2024 
9:00 a.m. 

Room 108 – Blatt Building 
 
Archived Video Available  
  

I. Pursuant to House Legislative Oversight Committee Rule 6.7, South Carolina ETV was allowed access for 
streaming the meeting. You may access an archived video of this meeting by visiting the South Carolina General 
Assembly’s website (http://www.scstatehouse.gov) and clicking on Committee Postings and Reports, then under 
House Standing Committees click on Legislative Oversight. Then, click on Video Archives for a listing of archived 
videos for the Committee.  
 

Attendance  
  

I. The Healthcare and Regulatory Subcommittee meeting was called to order by Chair John R. McCravy III on 
Tuesday, May 27, 2025, in Room 110 of the Blatt Building.  All subcommittee members (Chair McCravy; 
Representative Lucas Atkinson; Representative Kathy Landing; Representative Annie E. McDaniel; 
Representative Marvin “Mark” Smith) were present for all or a portion of the meeting.    
 

Minutes  
  

I. House Rule 4.5 requires standing committees to prepare and make available to the public the minutes of 
committee meetings, but the minutes do not have to be verbatim accounts of meetings.   

  
  



 
 
 
 

  
  
Approval of Minutes  
  

I. Representative Smith made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from the prior meeting.  A roll call vote 
was held, and the motion passed.  
 

Rep. Smith motion to approve 
meeting minutes.  

Yea  Nay  Not Voting  

Rep. Atkinson       

Rep. Landing      

Rep. McCravy      

Rep. McDaniel      

Rep. Smith    

  
Discussion of Department of Insurance (DOI) 
 

I. Prior to beginning his testimony, Chair McCravy informs Michael Wise, DOI Director, that he remains under 
oath from the Public Input Meeting, March 19, 2025. Chair McCravy swears in other DOI staff that plan on 
presenting information.   

 
II. Director Wise then begins presenting his overview of the agency. 

 
III. Topics of Discussion include: 

 
a. Agency mission and vision 
b. Agency statutory responsibilities 
c. Agency history 
d. Organizational overview 
e. Key issues 
f. Budget overview 
g. Administration division 

 

         Throughout the testimony, members ask Director Wise and Deputy Director Watson questions, they respond. 
 

 
 
 
 

Adjournment  
  

I. There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned.  
 

  



 

 
 
 
 

 
Adjournment  
  

I. There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned.  
 

  



AGENCY OVERVIEW 
  



DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE OVERVIEW 
 

 

The Department of Insurance envisions a competitive and financially 
stable insurance marketplace. To this end, the Department regulates 
the insurance marketplace by firmly and fairly implementing and 
enforcing the insurance laws. 

ABOUT 

The Department of Insurance is an agency of the Governor’s Cabinet. 
It is managed and operated by the Director appointed by and serves 
at the will of, the Governor upon the advice and consent of the South 
Carolina Senate. 

MISSION 

The mission of the State of South Carolina Department of Insurance 
(SCDOI) is to protect the insurance consumers, the public interest, and 
the insurance marketplace by ensuring the solvency of insurers; by 
enforcing and implementing the insurance laws of this State; and by 
regulating the insurance industry in an efficient, courteous, 
responsive, fair, and equitable manner. 

 Executive Services 
 Division of Administration 
 Division of Licensing and Consumer 

Services 
 Office of Legal, Legislative & External 

Affairs 
 Fraud Division 
 Division of Financial Regulation & 

Solvency 
 Division of Actuarial and Market 

Services 
 

DEPARTMENTS 

E M P L O Y E E S  

F U N D I N G  

112 
Authorized FTEs 

$16,224,365 
Total Funds 

VISION 

AGENCY LEADERSHIP 

 Tom Watson – Agency Director 
 Diane Cooper – Deputy Director, 

Consumer and External Affairs 
 Gwen Fuller-McGriff – Deputy Director, 

Legal, Legislative, & External Affairs 
 Geoffrey Bonham – Deputy Director, 

Financial Regulation and Solvency 
 Tommy Watson – Deputy Director, 

Administration 

HISTORY 

 1908 - The Insurance Department was a part of the Comptroller 
General’s Office until 1908 when the South Carolina Insurance 
Commission was created. 
 

 1947 – The Commission became a formal department, with the 
SCDOI becoming the state agency responsible for regulating the 
insurance industry in SC. 

 

 1995 – State Government Restructuring Act 
In 1995, the Department became a cabinet agency with a 
director appointed by the Governor upon advice and consent of 
the Senate.  Lee Jedziniak was appointed the first Director of 
Insurance in 1995. 

 

 2007 – The South Carolina Safe Home Program was established 
through the Omnibus Coastal Property Insurance Reform Act of 
2007. 
 

 2019 – South Carolina began regulating Pharmacy Benefit 
Managers (PBMs) in accordance with SC Act No. 48. 

 

 2021 – The Office of the Attorney General, SLED, and the 
Department of Insurance executed a Memorandum of 
Understanding to relocate the Insurance Fraud Division to the 
Department of Insurance. 



AGENCY PRESENTATION 



SOUTH 
CAROLINA 
DEPARTMENT 
OF INSURANCE



DIRECTOR 
MICHAEL WISE
• Michael Wise was appointed Director of the South Carolina Department of 

Insurance in May 2023, following the retirement of Raymond G. Farmer.

• Prior to his appointment as Director, he served as Deputy Director of the 
Actuarial and Market Services division, responsible for actuarial analyses, 
policy form and rate reviews, and the monitoring of traditional insurance 
markets. 

• He is an active participant in the National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners. 

• Wise holds a bachelor’s degree in mathematics-economics from Furman 
University, is an Associate of the Casualty Actuarial Society, a member of 
the American Academy of Actuaries, and a recent graduate of the South 
Carolina Executive Institute. 

• Wise is also a recent recipient of the American Academy of Actuaries 
Rising Actuary Award. 



Section 38-3-110 outlines the duties of the Director.  It says he must:
• (1) supervise and regulate the rates and service of every insurer in this state and fix reasonable standards, classifications, regulations, 

practices, and measurements of service to be observed and followed by every insurer doing business in this State.
• (2) see that all laws of this state governing insurers or relating to the business of insurance are faithfully executed and make regulations to 

carry out this title and all other insurance laws of this State.
• (3) report criminal violations to the Attorney General or other appropriate law enforcement.
• (4) institute civil actions, either through his office or the Attorney General, relative to the business of insurance or the provisions of this 

title which he considers necessary to institute.
• (5)(a) the director may hold a public hearing in the seacoast area to offer an opportunity to discuss the South Carolina Wind and Hail 

Underwriting Association
• (b) engage in efforts to provide market assistance and promote consumer education to SC residential property insurance consumers
• (c) produce an annual report to the legislature on the Coastal Property Insurance Market

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

Title 38

The Department of Insurance receives its authority and statutory duties from Title 38 of the South 
Carolina Code of Laws.

Duties of the Director



Mission Statement
The mission of the South Carolina Department of 

Insurance is to protect the insurance consumers, the 
public interest, and the insurance marketplace by 

ensuring the solvency of insurers; by enforcing and 
implementing the insurance laws of this State; and 
by regulating the insurance industry in an efficient, 
courteous, responsive, fair, and equitable manner.



SCDOI Significant Historical Events

1908 1947

The Commission became a formal 
department, with the SCDOI 
becoming the state agency 
responsible for regulating the 
insurance industry in SC. 

1995

State Government Restructuring Act

In 1995, the Department became a 
cabinet agency with a director appointed 
by the Governor upon advice and 
consent of the Senate. 

Lee Jedziniak was appointed the first 
Director of Insurance in 1995.

The Insurance Department was a 
part of the Comptroller General’s 
Office until 1908 when the South 
Carolina Insurance Commission 

was created.



SCDOI Significant Historical Events

2007 2019

South Carolina began regulating 
Pharmacy Benefit Managers 
(PBMs) in accordance with SC Act 
No. 48. 

The Office of the Attorney General, 
SLED, and the Department of Insurance 
executed a Memorandum of 
Understanding to relocate the 
Insurance Fraud Division to the 
Department of Insurance.

The South Carolina Safe Home 
Program was established through 
the Omnibus Coastal Property 
Insurance Reform Act of 2007.

2021



FITZHUGH MCMASTER 1908-1917
WILLIAM MCSWAIN 1918-1921
JOHN J.  MCMAHAN 1922-1927
SAM B.  KING 1928-1941
WILLIAM EGLESTON 1942-1943
D.D.  MURPHY 1944;  1949-1953
L.  GEORGE BENJAMIN 1945-1947
R. LEE KELLY 1954-1957
WILLIAM F.  AUSTIN 1960-1963
CHARLES GAMBRELL 1964-1966
LEROY BRANDT 1967-1969
JOHN W. LINDSAY 1970-1972;  1975-1981
HOWARD B.  CLARK 1973-1974
ROGERS T.  SMITH 1982-1984
JOHN RICHARDS 1985-1995
SUZANNE MURPHY 3/1995-6/1995

LEE P.  JEDZINIAK (FIRST DIRECTOR) 1995-1999
ERNST CSISZAR 1999-2004
GWENDOLYN F. MCGRIFF AND WALTER “TIMOTHY” 
BAKER (ACTING CO-DIRECTORS) 2004-2005
ELEANOR KITZMAN 2005-2007
SCOTT RICHARDSON 2007-2011
DAVID BLACK 2/2011-12/2011
GWENDOLYN MCGRIFF (INTERIM) 1/2012- 12/2012
RAYMOND G.  FARMER 2012-2022
MICHAEL WISE 2023- PRESENT

INSURANCE 
COMMISSIONERS 
AND DIRECTORS 



Federal & Local Counterparts 

• The McCarran-Ferguson Act, passed in 1945, established the 
current regulatory regime of state regulation for the insurance 
industry in the United States. 

• The Act reaffirmed the authority of individual states to regulate 
and tax the insurance industry within their borders. This means 
insurance companies must comply with state laws regarding 
licensing, rates, and other practices. 

• As such, there are no overlapping federal or local counterparts. 



 ADMINISTRATION

ORGANIZATIONAL OVERVIEW

 LEGAL, LEGISLATIVE & 
REGULATORY AFFAIRS 

 FINANCIAL REGULATION & 
SOLVENCY 

 FRAUD DIVISION

 MARKET SERVICES DIVISION

 ACTUARIAL SERVICES

 CONSUMER & EXTERNAL 
AFFAIRS



South Carolina Department of Insurance
Organizational Chart

Governor

Agency Director
Department of Insurance

Administration      
Deputy Director

Legal, Legislative & 
Regulatory Affairs 

Deputy Director

Financial 
Regulation & 

Solvency
Deputy Director

Prosecution

Legal

Consumer & 
External Affairs 
Deputy Director

Human Resources 

Finance, Accounting,  
Procurement

Safe Home Program

Information 
Resource Mgmt

Taxation Services

Financial Analysis

PBM Oversight and 
Specialty Licensing

Individual  Licensing

Consumer Services

Financial 
Examinations

Captives

10

Market Regulation 

Market Services 
Division

Program Manager

Administrative
P&C Unit

Life, A&H Unit

Executive Administration

Enforcement               

SOP / FOIA

Public Information

Fraud Prevention

Fraud Division
Director



Administration 

This division provides human resource management for 
department personnel, monitors compliance with the 
department's policies and procedures, provides 
procurement and fiscal operations services and maintains 
department records. Information technology and network 
security is managed by the Administration division.

This division also includes Taxation (premium taxes 
collected and calendar year audits of  tax returns) and SC 
Safe Home which provides grants to homeowners in SC 
coastal counties to help retrofit their homes.

The Administration area provides administrative support to 
all  areas of the Department of Insurance.

Tom Watson,  Deputy Director,  Administration



LEGAL, 
LEGISLATIVE 
& 
REGULATORY
AFFAIRS

The office represents the Department before state 
and federal courts and other administrative 
tribunals,  drafts legal documents, and advises other 
program areas of  the Department of Insurance on 
legal issues that arise in the course of their work.

The office also initiates enforcement or  administrative 
disciplinary action against Department licensees and 
those entities engaging in unauthorized transactions 
of insurance business.  

This area provides a variety of legal services to the 
regulatory units of the Department of Insurance.

Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs



FINANCIAL 
REGULATION & 
SOLVENCY

Geoffrey R.  Bonham, Deputy Director,  Financial  Regulation & Solvency

The Financial  Regulation & Solvency division l icenses all  
insurers doing business in SC and ensures that domestic 
insurers remain solvent.  

It  must occasionally place restrictions on companies prior to 
l icensing them and monitors these companies’ compliance.

The division continually reviews the financial  condition of all  
domestic insurers and conducts detailed financial  
examinations of companies every five years or as otherwise 
required by law. When necessary,  the division makes 
recommendations to the Director regarding appropriate 
administrative and regulatory action in accordance with the 
SC Code of Laws.

A key function of this division is the promotion of the captive 
insurance industry in South Carolina. 

The Office of PBM Oversight and Specialty Licensing also falls  
under this  division.



FRAUD 
DIVISION

Joshua R.  Underwood, Special  Assistant Attorney General Director,  
Insurance Fraud Division

The Insurance Fraud Division works to raise 
consumer awareness of the various forms of 
insurance fraud and investigates and prosecutes 
perpetrators of insurance fraud in South Carolina.



CONSUMER  
& EXTERNAL 
AFFAIRS

Diane Cooper,  Deputy Director,  Consumer & External Affairs



MARKET 
SERVICES 
DIVISION

This division is responsible for 
reviewing policy forms,  rates,  and rule 
f il ings from insurers that provide 
property,  casualty, l ife,  accident and 
health products.

Michael Wise, Director



ACTUARIAL 
SERVICES
DIVISION

The Actuarial  Services division 
provides actuarial analyses to all  
program areas, notably ratemaking 
and reserving. 

Michael Wise, 
Director



Key Issues
Matters that have recently been of  part icular 

interest to the Department and SC 
consumers.



COASTAL PROPERTY INSURANCE
Catastrophe exposed property markets are experiencing difficulties 
throughout the country.

This is driven by several things:

• drain on surplus from natural disasters impacting the US and other 
parts of the world (reinsurance is global)

• rising reinsurance costs
• lack of reinsurance capacity
• rating agency downgrades
• increase in frequency and severity of natural disasters
• higher repair and replacement costs
• inflationary pressures
• insurance fraud

We’ve seen a handful of coastal writers exit the state during the past 
several years, but we have worked with other carriers in an effort to 
ensure continuity of coverage for the impacted policyholders when 
possible.



COASTAL PROPERTY 
INSURANCE

• The South Carolina Wind and Hail Underwriting 
Association (SCWHUA) has not seen a significant increase 
in policies; some large (non-coastal specialist) carriers are 
picking up more coastal business.

• We’ve been reviewing rate filings and working with 
companies to ensure rate adequacy. It’s paramount that 
insurers have sufficient funds available to pay claims.

• Rising home values means more insurance coverage is 
needed, resulting in higher premiums.



The SCDOI is taking steps to address the difficulties facing the 
coastal property insurance market, such as: 

• Working to identify quality insurers not operating in SC so that we can 
recruit them to conduct business in our state.

• Placing more conditions on new certificates of authority for property 
writers, including:
⚬ minimum risk-based capital maintenance thresholds
⚬ limitations on premium writings within the state
⚬ Larger deposits specifically for the benefit of South Carolina 

policyholders. For example, we’ve required carriers to have as much as 
an $8 million deposit when warranted.

• Increased internal communication among Department divisions, 
particularly financial regulation, consumers, and rates and forms units.

Consumers can:

• speak with a trusted insurance agent,

• shop around well in advance of their policy renewal date,

• and consider coverage adjustments (e.g., higher deductible) that could 
best fit their situation.

COASTAL PROPERTY INSURANCE



LIQUOR LIABILITY

• The liquor liability insurance market in South 
Carolina is troubled. South Carolina bars and 
restaurants have faced problems with the 
availability and affordability of this coverage.

• The Department has compiled and analyzed data 
from insurers authorized to write liquor liability 
insurance coverage in South Carolina and 
presented this information to the Legislature.

• Companies have lost about $1.77 for every $1 of 
premium earned over the last six years.

• In the worst year, companies lost $2.60 per $1 of 
premium earned.

• The same insurers have experienced better results 
in neighboring states, realizing a net profit.



Federal Encroachment On State-Based 
Regulation

• Attempted Duplication of State Regulation
• International Confusion
• Potential for Politicization
• Cost and Burden
• Concerns about Data Collection
• Insurance concerns are localized and therefore,     

better addressed at the state level. 



Private Equity
• Private equity firms are increasingly investing in 

insurance companies, and insurance companies are 
investing into private equity for higher returns. 

• Since the 2008 financial crisis, U.S. insurance companies 
increasingly acquired private equity investments. 

• Additionally, there has been a recent trend of private 
equity companies acquiring insurance companies and 
investing their capital. 

• Private equity investments are potentially more risky 
and more illiquid than other assets, but for institutional 
investors the high expected returns are a major 
attraction.



Budget Overview
FY25 Budget as of  1/23/2025:

Total:  $26,685,106
State Appropriations: 

$ 8,527,826 (a)
Other Funds: $18,157,280 (b)

(a) Includes $663,631 carryforward for the Fraud Program.
(b) Includes $200,000 increase in the uninsured motorist – admin. fund for laptop refresh 

and $2,800,000 increase in the Safe Home mitigation fund for excess cash due to 
homeowners cancell ing because of rising prices.  Homeowners were unable to come up with 

their portion of the retrofits.



Budget Overview

In FY24,  the SCDOI col lected $376,341,094 in revenue from taxes,  fees,  assessments,  
f ines,  etc.  and deposited $361,550,737  into the State’s  General  Fund.

Much of the Department’s appropriated budget for FY25 ($26,685,106) represents pass-
throughs (47%).

22%- Safe Home ($5,904,632)
8%- Uninsured Motorists Distributions ($2,155,000) 

17%- Solvency and Captives ($4,711,824)



Budget Overview



Budget Overview



AUTHORIZED 
TOTAL FTE

112

CURRENT 
VACANT 

POSITIONS
21

AUTHORIZED 
OTHER FTE

58.7

AUTHORIZED 
FEDERAL FTE

0

AUTHORIZED 
STATE FTE 

53.3

POSITIONS 
CURRENTLY 

POSTED 
11

AUTHORIZED FTE BASE
AS OF 

01/02/2025



7/1/2023 to 
6/30/2024
One Year

16.3%

1/1/2025 to 
4/30/2025

Five Months

11.0%
7/1/2024 to 
12/31/2024
Six Months

12.2%

FTE Turnover Rates

6, 17%

22, 63%

5, 14%

1, 3%
1, 3%

Reasons for Separation

Diff Job/Diff State Agency

Employed Outside State Gov

Retirement

Term - No Grievance Rights

Violation of Agency Policy



Administration 

This division provides human resource management for 
department personnel, monitors compliance with the 
department's policies and procedures, provides 
procurement and fiscal operations services, and maintains 
department records.  Information technology and network 
security is managed by the Administration division.

This division also includes Taxation (premium taxes 
collected and calendar year audits of  tax returns) and SC 
Safe Home which provides grants to homeowners in SC 
coastal counties to help retrofit their homes.

The Administration division provides administrative 
support to all  areas of  the Department of Insurance.

Tom Watson,  Deputy Director,  Administration



South Carolina Department of Insurance
Division of Administration

T. Watson-NG
Administration
Deputy Director 
60025649-UA03

Vacant
Front Desk Switchboard

Admin. Spec. I
60025728-AA25

Mia Mills
Payables/Payroll Acct

Senior Accountant/
Fiscal Analyst

60025741-AN07

Derrick Brown
IT Technical Service/

Central Files
IT Manager II

60025736-AM56

Kenya Perez 
HR Director I

60025842-AG20

Cathy Hundley-NG
Acct/Receivables Analyst

Accountant Fiscal Analyst 
60025932-AN05

Leland Todd Shirey
Systems Programmer 
Application/Developer 

III
60025833-AM10

Virgie Lamont Bell
Systems Programmer

Application/ Developer III
60025738-AM10

Craig Carnegie 
Endpoint Technician I

60026039-AM65

Brittany Buckner
Procurement Spec. II

60026026-AC20

Andrew Rutland
Endpoint Technician I

60025928-AM65

Jamella Williams-NG
HR Manager I

60025743-AG12

Sharon Waddell
Premium Taxation 

Manager
Audits Manager I
60025740-AN23

Twyla Kelly 
Professional Auditor 

60025742-AN19

Wakenna Dowell
Professional Auditor

60025925-AN19

De’bograh
“Nicki” Palmer
Program Coord. I
61089632-AH35

Gregg Hamby

Sr. Network Admin
61155560-AM75 (UZO)

Angela Jones
HR Assistant

60025726-AA25

Agency Vacancy Pool
(Page 8)

Ann Roberson
SafeHome Program Manager

Program Manager I
60025735-AH45

32

Katie Blackwell
Digital Media Designer II 

60025737-BC14

Julie Hare
Apple One

Jamani Shuler
IT Intern

Program Assistant
61152282 –AH30

Ashley Tribble 
Program Assistant 
60025648-AH35

Caitlin Wilbanks
Apple One



Human Resources

Plans and administers workforce planning management programs and 
procedures for the SC Department of Insurance, including employee relations, 
classification and compensation, benefits, training, and other human resources 
programs.   Manages the recruitment and selection function, including the 
hiring levels, posting, and advertising vacancies, evaluating applicant 
qualifications, coordinating EEO reviews, recommending salaries, and 
developing or securing supporting documentation for hiring levels.  Maintains 
both federal and state compliance. 



Accounting
Develops and maintains standard accounting systems and internal controls, including 
recording, processing, and compiling of financial data by normal accounting processes.  
Responsible for all expenditures and collections.  Responsible for preparing and 
processing payroll.  Monitors cash and budget.  Prepares weekly, monthly, and yearly 
reports.



TAXATION
All insurance companies, including risk retention groups, captive 
insurance companies, and health maintenance organizations 
licensed to do business in SC must file their premium tax forms and 
fees with the Department by March 1 of each year.  

Companies that file quarterly estimates must file those with the 
Department on or before June 1, September 1, and December 1.  
Taxation performs annual audits of insurance company premium 
tax filings. We also collect surplus lines premium taxes from 
Brokers.



SC SAFE HOME MITIGATION 
GRANT PROGRAM

The South Carolina Safe Home program provides matching and non-matching grant 
funds to help coastal property owners retrofit their homes to make them more 
resistant to hurricanes and high-wind damage.  The funds provided by this program 
are for the sole purpose of retrofitting owner-occupied, single-family homes. SC Safe 
Home funds may not be used for remodeling, home repair, or new construction.

Award AmountsMitigation Award Type

Non-matching Grants: $7,500.00

Matching Grants: $6,000.00
Resilient Mitigation Award 

Non-matching Grants: $5,000.00
Matching Grants: $4,000.00

Sustainable Mitigation Award 

Non-matching and Matching: $3,000.00
Hurricane Shuttering and Protective 

Barrier Systems Award



Information Technology
Manages all information technology for the Department including 
hardware, networks, phones, and applications/software.  Provides end-
user support.  Ensures network and security are current and compliant 
with standards.  Monitors network traffic and applications for suspicious 
activity. 



Customers
The Administration division provides support to all areas of the 
Department of Insurance, and serves external customers such as:

 I n s u r a n c e  c o m p a n i e s  i n c l u d i n g  c a p t i v e s ,  p r o d u c e r s ,  b r o k e r s ,  a g e n t s ,  p r e m i u m  t a x  
p r e p a r e r s

 V e n d o r s ,  h o m e o w n e r s ,  c o n t r a c t o r s ,  i n s p e c t o r s

 S t a t e  a g e n c i e s  s u c h  a s  C o m p t r o l l e r  G e n e r a l ’ s  O f f i c e ,  S t a t e  L e g i s l a t u r e ,  S t a t e  T r e a s u r e r ’ s  
O f f i c e ,  H u m a n  R e s o u r c e s ,  S t a t e  P r o c u r e m e n t ,  S C  R e v e n u e  a n d  F i s c a l  A f f a i r s ,  S C  D e p t .  o f  
A d m i n . ,  S t a t e  A u d i t o r s  O f f i c e ,  S F A A - I n s u r a n c e  R e s e r v e ,  S t a t e  A c c i d e n t  F u n d ,  S C E I S  ( D e p t .  
o f  A d m i n ) ,  G o v e r n o r ’ s  O f f i c e ,  A t t o r n e y  G e n e r a l ’ s  O f f i c e

 M u n i c i p a l  A s s o c i a t i o n  o f  S C

 S C  M e d i c a l  M a l p r a c t i c e  A s s o c i a t i o n

 I n s u r a n c e  I n s t i t u t e  f o r  B u s i n e s s  &  H o m e  S a f e t y  ( I B H S )

 T y l e r  T e c h n o l o g i e s  

 N a t i o n a l  A s s o c i a t i o n  o f  I n s u r a n c e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  ( N A I C )



Administration’s Metrics
 Human Resources



Administration’s Metrics
 Human Resources



Administration’s  Metrics
 Accounting – Electronic Payments

79% of the manual payments are from Service of Process.  A system 
we will discuss later on in our efforts to automate.  The majority of 
the other 21% are from insurance companies and brokers that have 
payments exceeding the $1,000,000 cap for ACH and credit cards.

Period Revenues Collected
FY24 464,204,294.79
FY25 thru 5-12-25 457,561,631.99

Totals 921,765,926.78

Counts of Receipts



Administration’s Metrics
 Accounting FY24 Payables/Invoices, Reporting and Tracking 



Administration’s Metrics
 Taxation Calendar Year 2024 Premium Tax Audits



Administration’s Metrics
 Taxation Calendar Year 2024 Premium Tax Audits

Partial 
Snapshot



Administration’s Metrics
 Taxation Calendar Year 2025 Brokers-Surplus Lines Premium Tax 

~ 526 Brokers

** Represents month that payments are 
due based on current date when 
generated.



Administration’s Metrics
 Safe Homes – Online Portal



 Safe Homes – Online Portal

Administration’s Metrics



Administration’s Metrics
 Safe Homes – Online Portal



Administration’s Metrics
 Safe Homes – Online Portal Activity (FY25 YTD)

Partial Snapshot



Administration’s Metrics
 Information Technology



Administration’s Metrics
 Information Technology



Challenges/Successes/Opportunities



South Carolina Department of Insurance
Division of Administration

T. Watson
Administration
Deputy Director 
60025649-UA03

Vacant
Front Desk Switchboard

Admin. Spec. II
60025728-AA50

Mia Mills
Payables/Payroll Acct

Senior Accountant/
Fiscal Analyst

60025741-AN07

Derrick Brown
IT Technical Service/

Central Files
IT Manager II

60025736-AM56

Kenya Perez 
HR Director I

60025842-AG20

Cathy Hundley
Acct/Receivables Analyst

Accountant Fiscal Analyst 
60025932-AN05

Leland Todd Shirey
Systems Programmer 
Application/Developer 

III
60025833-AM10

Virgie Lamont Bell
Systems Programmer

Application/ Developer III
60025738-AM10

Craig Carnegie 
Endpoint Technician I

60026039-AM65

Brittany Buckner
Procurement Spec. II

60026026-AC20

Andrew Rutland
Endpoint Technician I

60025928-AM65

Jamella Williams
HR Manager I

60025743-AG12

Sharon Waddell
Premium Taxation 

Manager
Audits Manager I
60025740-AN23

Twyla Kelly 
Professional Auditor 

60025742-AN19

Wakenna Dowell
Professional Auditor

60025925-AN19

De’bograh
“Nicki” Palmer
Program Coord. II
61089632-AH40

Gregg Hamby

Sr. Network Admin
61155560-AM75 (UZO)

Angela Jones
HR Coordinator
60025726-AG09

Ann Roberson
SafeHome Program Manager

Program Manager I
60025735-AH45

Katie Blackwell
Digital Media Designer II 

60025737-BC14

Julie Hare
Apple One

Jamani Shuler
IT Intern

Program Assistant
61152282 –AH30

Ashley Tribble 
Program Assistant 
60025648-AH35

Caitlin Wilbanks
Apple One



South Carolina Department of Insurance
Division of Administration

Kenya Perez 
HR Director I

60025842-AG20

Jamella Williams
HR Manager I

60025743-AG12

Angela Jones
HR Coordinator
60025726-AG09

• Directs the human resources program by managing functional areas such as recruitment and employment, class and 
compensation, employee/employer relations, Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action (EEO/AA), training and 
development, benefits, and human resources transactions and records. 

• Forecasts human resource needs and advises the agency director and the executive management staff of human resource 
needs. Directs employee training and development.

• Plans, implements, and coordinates classification, employee relations, recruitment and employment, benefits administration 
and/or records management functions. 

• Assist in advising managers and employees in the area(s) of expertise to resolve problems. 
• Manages employee participation in preplanned benefits programs covering health care, life insurance, and retirement 

according to established guidelines. 
• Assist with any management reviews, staffing studies, and other human resources-related research.

• Assists in the coordination of classification, compensation, employee relations, recruitment and employment, benefits, and records 
management functions. Acts as a resource on human resources matters, providing guidance, assistance, and support to 
management, supervisors and staff. 

• Assists with recruitment and may participate in hiring committees. 
• Conducts orientation sessions to acquaint new employees with agency policies, procedures, and regulations. 
• Assists in the coordination of related programs such as wellness campaigns, employee assistance programs, charity fundraisers, 

and employee health and safety programs. 
• Provides guidance, interpretation, and training related to human resource policies.  Maintains human resource records. Accesses 

human resource data and may compile reports for data-driven decision making by superiors. 



South Carolina Department of Insurance
Division of Administration

• Performs and/or coordinates complex duties in the creation and maintenance of accounting records, the verification and documentation 
of financial transactions, and assists with the management of the budget.  

• Processes all transactions of cash, expense, and revenue using the SCEIS application. 
• Prepares appropriate reports and projections. Recommends improvements needed in internal controls. Reconciles situations when

files are out of balance and research errors, and ensures corrective action is taken.

• Prepares and reconciles the postings of all payments on accounts, deposit verifications of ACH, credit cards, and manual 
deposits.  Assists in processing payroll for the Department. 

• Follows and completes the Agency Payroll checklist for each pay period.  Monitors timesheets and leave for timely   
approval.  Processes all refunds and Safe Home grant payments to contractors. Prepares all billings and maintains     
accounts receivable system.

• Plans, develops, and deploys a comprehensive strategy to facilitate effective, timely, and impactful informational or educational 
communications that enables the agency to engage with its respective audiences using appropriate digital communications platforms.  

• Maintains fluency in current trends and concepts for social media design and maintenance. 
• Provides direction for or executes the creation of social media content calendars and social media content, as well as determining the 

cadence for social media posting. Ensures the prompt, accurate, and appropriate response to comments, questions and inquiries posted on 
the agency's social media platforms.

Mia Mills
Payables/Payroll Acct

Senior Accountant/
Fiscal Analyst

60025741-AN07

Cathy Hundley
Acct/Receivables Analyst

Accountant Fiscal Analyst 
60025932-AN05

Katie Blackwell
Digital Media Designer II 

60025737-BC14



• Processes the routine service procurement functions and acts as the point of contact for more complex procurement duties, such as contract bid   
solicitation for central state purchasing.  

• Coordinates all facility needs, including equipment repairs for the agency. 
• Manages the front desk and all mailing activities. 
• Prepares and designates invitations to bid, as needed. Awards contracts and prepares purchase orders. Assists in negotiating service contracts. 

• Front Desk Receptionist.  Answers phone calls, transfers calls to appropriate areas, and greets customers.  
• Processes and distributes all mail.  
• Performs a variety of administrative support and advanced office duties, such as typing and filing. 

• Front Desk Receptionist (backup).  Answers phone calls, transfers calls to appropriate areas, and greets 
customers.  

• Processes and distributes all mail.  
• Performs a variety of administrative support and advanced office duties, such as typing and filing. 

Caitlin Wilbanks
Apple One



South Carolina Department of Insurance
Division of Administration

• Directs and manages staff in conducting premium tax audits of insurance companies and surplus lines brokers. 
• Directs the day-to-day activities and audit procedures/checklists. 
• Determines audit priorities and work assignments of subordinate personnel. Works with agency representatives 

and taxpayers regarding audit results.  
• Conducts reviews of subordinates and results of completed audits to ensure compliance with applicable statutes 

and regulations.
• Writes or updates procedural and training manuals and assists in training of audit staff.  
• Reconciles and prepares reports.  Follows up on outstanding taxes due.

• Performs professional auditing/examination duties.
• Examines and analyzes business and individual premium tax returns, electronic data processing systems and/or 

the organization’s activities and operations to ascertain financial status, accuracy of data, efficiency, or 
compliance with laws and regulations. 

• Inspects accounting files to determine the existence of sufficient documentation.

Sharon Waddell
Premium Taxation 

Manager
Audits Manager I
60025740-AN23

Twyla Kelly 
Professional Auditor 

60025742-AN19

Wakenna Dowell
Professional Auditor

60025925-AN19

Taxation



South Carolina Department of Insurance
Division of Administration

• Directs and manages the SC Safe Home Program, including the online portal workflow and imaging system.  This 
includes the administration and coordination with the SC Safe Home Advisory Committee, fundraising, public relations 
and communications, and management of the grant program and program staff.  

• Coordinates the logistics of contractor and/or inspector training, the annual Safe Home Meeting, and storm
ready/preparedness expos.  Researches and submits grant applications for mitigation and storm 
readiness/preparedness efforts

• Provides technical and professional services related to the administration and procedures of the SC Safe Home grant program, 
including the online portal. 

• Supervises the Program Assistant including assignments, workloads, and schedules and the oversight of the daily activities of
the SC Safe Home grant portal for in-process and submitted applications.  

• Reviews all “ready for award” applications.  Ensures grant projects are completed on time and meet grant requirements and 
quality standards. 

• Works with the Program Manager in the coordination of all aspects of the grant program including but not limited to project 
review, data collection scheduling, and policy development.  

• Assists in the preparation of reports to include grants and other activities necessary for the Dept.'s mitigation programs and 
efforts.

• Provides technical and professional services related to the administration and procedures of the SC Safe Home grant program, 
including the online portal.  Reviews all in-process and submitted applications. 

• Ensures grant projects are completed on time and meet grant requirements and quality standards. 
• Works with the Program Coordinator II in coordinating all aspects of the grant program including but not limited to project review, 

data collection scheduling, and policy development.  
• Assists in the preparation of reports including grants and other activities necessary for the Dept.'s mitigation programs and efforts.

De’bograh
“Nicki” Palmer
Program Coord. II
61089632-AH40

Ann Roberson
Safe Home Program Manager

Program Manager I
60025735-AH45

Ashley Tribble
Program Assistant 
60025648-AH35

Safe Home 



South Carolina Department of Insurance
Division of Administration

• Provides customer support for enterprise applications, operating systems, endpoints, and 
peripheral devices, including installation, maintenance, upgrades, troubleshooting, problem 
resolution, acquisition, and replacement.  

• Troubleshoots, repairs, and resolves moderately complex software and device issues. 
Serves as technical resource for users. 

• Ensures end user information security/information assurance policies, principles, and 
practices are applied. Includes networks, phone systems, copiers, etc.

Derrick Brown
IT Technical Service/

Central Files
IT Manager II

60025736-AM56

Craig Carnegie 
Endpoint Technician I

60026039-AM65

Andrew Rutland
Endpoint Technician I

60025928-AM65

Jamani Shuler
IT Intern

Program Assistant
61152282 –AH30

• Directs, coordinates, and administers all information technology (IT) 
related activities, including security for the agency. 

• Develops short and long-range technology initiatives.  
• Formulates requirement definitions, impact assessments, and capacity 

planning for proposed new services, technology, or changes to existing 
services and/or technology. Identifies, prioritizes, and tracks status on IT 
projects. 

• Directs the planning, development, implementation, and modification of 
information technology related systems and applications for the agency.

Information Technology



Leland Todd Shirey
Systems Programmer 
Application/Developer 

III
60025833-AM10

• Maintains applications and databases for the agency. 
• Writes, tests, and documents complex computer programs. 
• Follows all phases of the development life cycle in order to design, develop, test, deploy, and support complex applications.
• Follows standards and procedures for programming. 
• Develops and implements specialized programs to supplement and enhance systems software. Feasibility assessments, designs 

technical options, authors code, troubleshoots applications, maintains installed systems, and produces and maintains documentation 
and testing. 

• Assists users with application issues. Recommends development of new code or reuse/enhancement of existing code.

Gregg Hamby
Sr. Network Admin

61155560-AM75 (UZO)

Information Technology



26
1,

97
2,

76
0 

76
,2

70
,2

59
 

19
,4

65
,8

02
 

17
,1

66
,7

58
 

15
,0

65
,0

20
 

8,
69

4,
41

4 

7,
97

9,
69

0 

6,
93

2,
33

4 

3,
10

7,
36

6 

1,
76

2,
58

0 

1,
36

8,
70

0 

1,
09

2,
04

0 

82
3,

47
5 

38
9,

04
5 

0

50,000,000

100,000,000

150,000,000

200,000,000

250,000,000

300,000,000

INSURANCE
PREMIUM TAX

BROKERS
PREMIUM TAX

WORKERS
COMP INS TAX

FIRE DEPT PREM
TAX

INS AGENTS
LICENSE

FIRE INS
INSPECT TAX

INS ADJUSTORS
LICENSE

INS
RETALIATORY

FEE

MISC REVENUE INS FIXED
LICENSE

ANNUAL
INSURANCE TAX

INS AGENCY
LICENSE

INS BROKERS
LICENSE

INS APPRAISERS
LICENSE

FY 2024 YTD Revenue
Excluding Premium Tax Credits

Deposited to General Fund
$361,550,737 (excluding amounts <$100k)



2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Coastal Premium Tax $73,122 $38,348 $25,215 $41,824 $101,548 $209,843 $312,644

Moratorium Tax Credit $- $- $- $- $-

Research and Development $144,866 $1,546,465 $2,002,702 $1,357,302 $944,909 $855,151 $1,151,973

L & H Guaranty $10,831,403 $9,905,656 $9,957,006 $9,527,528 $13,922,170 $5,470,160 $5,503,792

Textiles Rehabilitation $14,026,983 $19,211,672 $14,122,596 $20,667,967 $16,350,169 $21,485,787 $14,436,096

Health Pool $5,761 $1,025,994 $1,414 $732,903 $866,120 $- $-

Other Credits $428,005 $2,413,351 $389,569 $662,408 $286,174 $390,848 $273,000

Venture Capital Authority $3,000,000 $3,000,000 $6,000,000 $2,500,000 $5,000,000 $- $187,595

Jobs $1,695,941 $1,554,007 $1,675,360 $2,311,599 $3,076,405 $4,305,552 $5,027,359

Historic Structures & Textiles Rehab $3,711,600 $3,997,608 $12,548,315 $4,703,212 $6,591,124 $5,452,690 $6,202,566

Community Deveopment $- $- $- $-

Abandoned Building $- $- $2,190,638 $2,841,458 $1,638,219 $181,382 $1,855,020

SC Housing Tax Credit $1,503,163 $5,568,639 $17,042,267

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

Am
ou

nt

Year

Premium Tax Credits 
2017 thru 2023

Coastal Premium Tax Moratorium Tax Credit Research and Development L & H Guaranty Textiles Rehabilitation Health Pool Other Credits

Venture Capital Authority Jobs Historic Structures & Textiles Rehab Community Deveopment Abandoned Building SC Housing Tax Credit



TAXATION
The lines of business and corresponding tax rates are as follows:

Life, Accident and Health – .75% 
Property – 1.25% 
Casualty – 1.25%
Surety – 1.25%
Marine – 1.25%
Fire – 2.35% - Increased from 2.00% in 2001 under Act 60
Workers’ Compensation – 2.50% - Decreased from 3.50% in FY 1991-92

Please refer to Sections 38-7-20; 38-7-30; 38-7-49 and Act 60 of 2001

Biennial License Fees - $800
Biennial Fixed License Fees -$400 per line of authority

When the MASC tax on 
gross premiums is added to 

the state tax rate, the 
range is 1.50% for life and 

3.75% to 4.50% for 
property and casualty lines



TAXATION



TAXATION



Some Other Fees



FY26 (3%) $231,892
FY25 (3%) $193,666
FY24 (3%) $187,508

All programs would be impacted by these 
proposed reductions.  The Agency 

believes it could reduce some of its 
operating costs in order to meet any 

mandated reduction of 3%.

We would postpone some of our planned IT 
initiatives related to security and privacy as 

recommended by SC Dept. of Admin; omit our 
normal advertising campaigns for flood, 

texting and driving, and other disasters; and 
reduce any contract labor and/or temporaries 

as needed.





27 Insurance Certification Programs 
available plus a few for non-

insurance such as HR, IT, 
Procurement, etc.







Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

Office of Legal, Legislative and 
Regulatory Affairs

An Overview



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

Role of State Legislatures in Insurance 
Regulation

• The South Carolina General Assembly is the public policymaker that 
establishes broad policy for the regulation of insurance by enacting 
legislation providing the regulatory framework under which insurance 
regulators operate. The General Assembly establishes the laws which 
grant regulatory authority to regulators and oversee state insurance 
Currently, the SCDOI employs ___ regulatory personnel (FY 2025 
figures). 

• Increases in staff and technology have enabled SCDOI personnel to 
substantially enhance the quality and effectiveness of financial oversight 
of insurers and expand consumer protection activities  through market 
regulation. 



Laws Impacting the Operation of the S.C. 
Department of Insurance

Statutory Requirement/Authority GrantedType of  LawJurisdictionSection Number

Establishes the South Carolina Department of  Insurance 
as a part of  the Executive Department

StatuteState1-1-110

Sets forth administrative requirements for 
agencies including rules, regulations and orders

StatuteState1-23-10  et seq

Transferred all rights and duties to the SCDOI 
as a part of the 1995 restructuring of state 
government

StatuteState 1-30-55

This title creates the South Carolina Department of  
Insurance and includes the insurance laws

StatuteState38-1-10  et seq.

South Carolina insurance regulationsRegulationsStateS.C. Code Ann. Regs. 69-1 et 
seq.

McCarran Ferguson Act (gives states the authority to 
regulate the business of  insurance

StatuteFederal 15 USCA Section 1101 et seq.



Laws Impacting the Operation of the S.C. 
Department of Insurance

Statutory Requirement/Authority GrantedType of  LawJurisdictionSection Number

Sets forth the ethical requirements for 
public officials and employees; defines 
appropriate conduct

StatuteState8-13-10 et seq

Sets forth the grievance procedures that must be 
followed by agencies for public employees; it 
defines those actions that are and are not grievable
actions

StatuteState8-17-10 et seq

South Carolina Family Privacy Rights ActStatuteState30-2-10 et seq

This is the South Carolina Freedom of 
Information Act

StatuteState 30-4-10 et seq.

StatuteState 39-1-90



Laws Impacting the Operation of the S.C. 
Department of Insurance

Statutory Requirement/Authority 
Granted

Type of LawJurisdictionSection Number

Set new standards for corporate governancestatuteFederalSarbanes-Oxley

Establishes federal backstop for terrorism 
insurance

StatuteFederalTerrorism Risk in 
Insurance Act

Individuals convicted of crimes involving 
breach of trust or dishonesty cannot engage in 
the business of insurance without the consent 
of the chief insurance regulatory official

StatuteFederal18 USC Section 1033

Federal anti-discriminationStatuteFederalTitle VII

Established new rules for the private health 
insurance market

statuteFederal Affordable Care Act

Licensure of producers; review and approval of 
Medicare Supplement Insurance policies

statuteFederalMedicare



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

General Insurance Regulatory Framework

Market RegulationSolvency RegulationLicensing
Insurance Product Regulation:See, e.g.,  Chapters 5, 9, 11, 12, 

13, 17, 19, 21, 44, 90
Individual Licensing

See, e.g., Chapters 61, 63, 65, 71, 
73, 75, 77, etc.

See, e.g., Chapters 43, 
45, 47, 48, 49, 53

Rate RegulationInsurer Licensing

See, e.g., Chapters 73, 75, 77See Chapter 5

Consumer ServicesBusiness entities

See, e.g., 13, 63, 65, 71, 73, 75, 
77

See e.g., Chapters 44, 
51, 70, 71, 78, 87, 97



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

Mission of the SCDOI

The mission of the State of South Carolina Department of
Insurance (SCDOI) is to protect the insurance consumers,
the public interest, and the insurance marketplace by
ensuring the solvency of insurers; by enforcing and
implementing the insurance laws of this State; and by
regulating the insurance industry in an efficient, courteous,
responsive, fair, and equitable manner.



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

SCDOI Counsel
• The Department has 5 divisions tasked with fulfilling the 

mission of the agency.
• SCDOI counsel provide various types of legal support to 

further the Department’s mission.
• Each division has dedicated counsel to advise the 

division and the business units within the division.



LEGAL, 
LEGISLATIVE 
& 
REGULATORY 
AFFAIRS

Mission
The mission of the Legal, Legislative & Regulatory Affairs is to 
promote the integrity, efficiency, and effectiveness of the regulatory 
programs and operations of the Department and to provide high 
quality, timely and practical legal, regulatory and enforcement 
services to the Department.  We work collaboratively with 
management to promote an organizational culture that encourages 
ethical conduct, compliance with the law and a commitment to 
advance the Department’s mission.  

Values
Members of the Legal, Legislative and Regulatory Affairs are valued, 
and trusted regulators and legal advisors committed to achieving the 
agency’s mission, goals, and objectives. We realize this vision by being 
engaged, insightful, proactive, and dedicated to the purpose, mission 
and vision of the South Carolina Department of Insurance.

Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

About the Of f ice
This Division provides a variety of legal and regulatory services to 
the business units of the Department of Insurance. The office also 
initiates enforcement or administrative disciplinary action against 
Department licensees who violate the insurance laws of this state 
and those entities engaging in unauthorized transaction of insurance 
business. 



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

Roles of Counsel
The General Counsel manages an in-house legal department and is
responsible for overseeing all legal matters impacting the agency. The GC
reports to the Director. The General Counsel provides strategic guidance on
legal issues, manages compliance and risk mitigation, reviews contracts,
and handles other legal duties to protect the agency's interests. The General
Counsel plays a critical role in aligning the Legal Division’s work with the
agency’s mission.

Role
General Counsel

Associate General Counsel positions are assigned to specific divisions as
counsel to provide legal support. Associate GCs generally handle the full
scope of tasks an in-house legal department is assigned daily, from legal
research to litigation advice for the division they are assigned to support.

Associate General 
Counsel

The Assistant General Counsel position provides legal support to a specific
business unit within a division or divisions.

Assistant General 
Counsel



Legal, Legislative, and Regulatory Services Strategic  
Objectives

Deliver quality, timely and practical legal, investigative and  compliance services that promote the 
integrity, efficiency and effectiveness in the Department’s operations

Goal 1:

• Communicate timely and useful information and advice that facilitates and helps accomplish the mission and goals of this agency
• Conduct independent and objective investigations of potential violations of the insurance laws of this state and instituting administrative 

disciplinary action when appropriate. 
• Provide legal advice to ensure compliance with legal requirements and to reduce exposure to legal risks.
• Provide effective and vigorous advocacy for the Department’s interests in state and federal tribunals. 

Plan effectively for the succession of the Office of Legal, Legislative and Regulatory ServicesGoal 2:

• Hire, train and retain qualified attorneys,  investigators, examiners, paralegals and other support  staff to perform the work of the office
• Provide training/cross-training, staffing, equipment and technology to enable OGC staff to provide quality services to the SCDOI
• Use technology to maintain institutional knowledge

Identify risks in SCDOI programs and operations and make legal recommendations to improve 
operations and mitigate risk. 

Goal 3:

• Assist program areas with preventive legal advice
• Stay abreast and keep clients informed on emerging legal and regulatory trends
• Develop and conduct legal training for the various business units

Serve as a resource for informed decision making and creative problem solving to facilitate the 
Department’s mission. 

Goal 4:

• Coordinate the provision of all legal services for the Department via internal and external counsel
• Serve as a strategic partner to facilitate solutions that are legally compliant and fulfill the agency’s mission.



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

CURRENT STAFFING
General Counsel

Assoc. General Counsel for 
Investigations and 

Enforcement

Chief 
Investigator

Special 
Investigator

Special 
Investigator

Assoc. General Counsel for 
Administration & Internal 

Operations

Administrative 
Coordinator

Assoc. General for 
Legislation & Regulatory 

Policy

Asst. General Counsel for 
Market Regulation & PBM 

Enforcement

Market 
Regulation 
Coordinator

Market 
Compliance 

Analyst

Assoc. General  Counsel for 
Financial Regulation & Solvency

Senior Paralegal
Paralegal

Temporary 
Investigator



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

RESPONSIBILITIES CHART



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

RESPONSIBILITIES CHART



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

RESPONSIBILITIES CHART



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

RESPONSIBILITIES CHART



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

Historical Staffing Numbers
Total Employee Separations 
during Fiscal year

Turnover Type(s)Total Number of 
Office Staff

Fiscal Year

3• Retirements 
• Voluntary Resignations

82020-2021

3• Retirements 
• Voluntary Resignations

52021-2022

2• Retirements 
• Voluntary Resignations

62022-2023

2• Retirements 
• Voluntary Resignations

82023-2024

182024-2025



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

OVERVIEW OF PRACTICE AREAS 
AND TEAMS



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

INVESTIGATION AND INDIVIDUAL LICENSEE COMPLIANCE
INVESTIGATION & INDIVIDUAL LICENSING  
PRACTICE TEAM

Business Units Supported

Individual Licensing & Continuing 
EducationAssociate General Counsel 

for Investigations & 
Enforcement

Temporary 
Investigator

Chief 
Investigator

Special 
Investigator

Special 
Investigator

Paralegal 
Investigations and  

Enforcement

Investigators:
• Investigate allegations that individual licensees have 

violated the standards set forth in Title 38 for the specific 
license type and present findings to counsel

• Investigate allegations that licensees have been convicted 
of crimes and are no longer eligible for a license issued 
by the Department and present findings to counsel

Counsel:
• Provides advice and counsel to business unit on statutory 

interpretations
• Reviews investigative findings to determine disciplinary 

action or appropriate resolution
• Institutes disciplinary action 
• Represents the Department in disciplinary proceedings

The Department regulates 
more than 499,000 
individual licensees.



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

INVESTIGATIONS AND INDIVIDUAL LICENSEE COMPLIANCE
Target 
Assessment Date

Strategic Objective(s)

June 30thConduct independent and objective investigations of 
licensees alleged to have violated the laws of the state of 
South Carolina and institute administrative disciplinary 
action where appropriate

Goal 1

June 30thComplete the investigation of the majority (i.e., 75%) of 
investigable allegations within 90 days of assignment or other 
assigned timeframe

Goal 2

June 30thUtilize technology to strengthen existing investigative 
framework and data analysis capabilities to identify trends.

Goal 3

June 30thProvide quality investigative reports to Counsel for use in 
administrative disciplinary matters or regulatory policy 
development

Goal 4

June 30thDevelop a training and mentoring plan for investigative teamGoal 5



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

INVESTIGATIONS AND INDIVIDUAL LICENSEE COMPLIANCE

Associate General Counsel 
for Investigations & 

Enforcement

Temporary 
Investigator

Chief 
Investigator

Special 
Investigator

Special 
Investigator

Paralegal 
Investigations and  

Enforcement

General DutiesPosition
• Oversees the investigative and administrative disciplinary 

function(s)
• Initiates disciplinary action on behalf of the DOI
• Performs legal sufficiency review of investigations
• Drafts orders
• Represents the Department  in administrative disciplinary 

proceedings

Associate General 
Counsel

• Triages allegations that insurance laws have been violated
• Supervises the investigations that are conducted
• Draft reports investigative reports for counsel and testifies in 

administrative disciplinary proceedings

Chief Investigator

• Collects evidence to prove or disprove an allegation  that 
insurance laws were violated

• Drafts investigative reports for counsel and testifies in 
administrative proceedings

Special Investigator

• Conducts investigations and handles special projects or 
investigations

Temporary 
Investigator

GENERAL COUNSEL



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

INVESTIGATIONS AND INDIVIDUAL LICENSEE COMPLIANCE
PERFORMANCE METRICS 2024-2025

NumberPerformance Metric

168% of investigations completed 
within 90 days of assignment

334Total # of Files Opened

264Total# of Files Closed

90*Average days to complete an 
investigation

20Total # of Consent Orders Issued

22Total # of revocations

1Total # of Suspensions

54Total # of Warning Letters issued

2Total # of Probation Notices 

3Total # of Disciplinary Hearings



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

INVESTIGATIONS
Flow Chart

Complaint 
Received; file 

opened
Triage by Chief 

Investigator

Credible 
Allegation/SCDOI 

Jurisdiction?

If yes, Assign to 
Investigator

Prepare 
Investigative 

Plan
Investigate

Review 
investigation 

results with Chief 
Investigator and 

Attorney 

Prepare 
Investigative 
Report and 

Recommendations

Legal 
Sufficiency 

Review

If legally sufficient, 
transfer to Attorney 
for Administrative 
Action or Hearing

Initiate 
Administrative 

Disciplinary 
Process



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

INVESTIGATIONS AND INDIVIDUAL LICENSEE COMPLIANCE
Historical Performance

FY 2022-2023
558Investigation Files Opened

624Investigation Files Closed

0License Suspensions

0License Probation

117Warning Letters

66License Revocations

0AG Referrals

0Cease and Desist Letter

$11,500Administrative Penalties

76FOIA Requests

4668Service of Process

FY 2023-2024
353Total Complaints Received

228Investigation Files Opened

125Investigations Denied/No Action

221Investigation Files Closed

0License Suspensions

11License Surrenders

0License Probation

30Warning Letters

28License Revocations

3Fraud Referrals

3Cease and Desist Letters

52FOIA Requests

4859Service of Process



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

INVESTIGATIONS AND INDIVIDUAL LICENSEE COMPLIANCE

Historical Performance
FY 2020-2021

321Investigation Files Opened

279Investigation Files Closed

0License Suspensions

7License Probation

38Warning Letters

56License Revocations

2AG Referrals

126FOIA Requests

4496Service of Process

FY 2021-2022
468Investigation Files Opened

392Investigation Files Closed

0License Suspensions

2License Probation

128Warning Letters

71License Revocations

2AG Referrals

3Cease and Desist Letters

52FOIA Requests

4864Service of Process



Gwendolyn McGrif f, Deputy Director, Legal, Legislative & Regulatory 
Af fairs

MARKET REGULATION AND COMPLIANCE



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

PURPOSE OF MARKET REGULATION

•Market regulation strives to:
Ensure consumers are charged rates that are not 
excessive, inadequate or unfairly discriminatory, have 
access to compliant insurance products, and that 
licensees comply with the requirements of South 
Carolina law.



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

MARKET REGULATION AND COMPLIANCE
STRATEGIC GOALS & OBJECTIVES

Goals

Finalize the Workplan for the upcoming fiscal year by June 301.
• Review MCAS by the established deadline in accordance with the NAIC Market Conduct Handbook
• Complete Level 1 Checklists by the established deadlines
• Complete SCDOI Examination Coordinator templates for market conduct examinations

Conduct scheduled examinations in accordance with SCDOI policies and procedures2.

Schedule back-end audits for exempt products to ensure compliance with applicable South 
Carolina laws.

3.

Enhance the market regulation resources within the South Carolina Department of 
Insurance

4.

• Secure market conduct examination resources through the state procurement process 
• Secure opportunities for existing market regulation staff to shadow contractors
• Cross-train investigators to do market regulation work
• Reclass the market conduct coordinator position to a higher level to attract qualified applicants
• Hire an attorney to assist with market regulation activities

Insert third bullet here3.



Gwendolyn McGrif f, Deputy Director, Legal, Legislative & Regulatory 
Af fairs

SCDOI Divisions with a 
Market Regulation Mission

Product RegulationActuarial ServicesIndividual Licensing & Consumer 
Services

Total Staff: 10Total Staff: 4Total Staff: 16

Primary ResponsibilitiesPrimary ResponsibilitiesPrimary Responsibilities:

This division implements and helps 
enforce the laws and guidelines 
pertaining to the insurance  
products that are offered for sale in 
this state.  Products must comply 
with coverage requirements set 
forth in statute.  They also review 
and approve rates as required by 
SC law to ensure they are not 
excessive, inadequate or unfairly 
discriminatory.

• Reviews rate filing to ensure 
they are actuarially supported

• Analyze data to determine the 
financial risk of insurance 
policies and investments on the 
financial health or condition of 
the insurer

• Review and analyze the 
sufficiency of reserves

 The Department’s regulation 
involves implementing and 
enforcing the requirements for 
individuals who sell, solicit or 
negotiate insurance.  Applicants 
for licensure must comply with 
licensing and continuing 
education requirements to be 
eligible to transact business in 
this state.



Gwendolyn McGrif f, Deputy Director, Legal, Legislative & Regulatory 
Af fairs

MARKET REGULATION AND COMPLIANCE TEAM
Organizational Structure

Market Analysts perform market analysis 
of insurer performance in accordance with 
SC law and NAIC guidelines.

Referrals from the Office of Consumer 
Services and other business units are 
investigated  and if warranted other 
regulatory action including a market 
conduct examination may be conducted.

General Counsel

Assistant General 
Counsel for Market 
Regulation & PBM 

Enforcement

Temporary 
Investigator

Market 
Regulation and 

Compliance 
Analyst

Market Conduct 
Coordinator

Paralegal

Most of the employees in this area perform these functions
in addition to other responsibilities. The work for this
regulatory function has been consistently supported by
contract examination firms and regulators from other states.

Business Units Supported
• Office of Consumer Services (Referrals)
• Financial Analysis (Referrals)
• Financial Examinations (Referrals)

• Product Regulation (Referrals)



Statutory Authority:



Statutory Authority:  S.C. Code Ann. § 38-13-10 et seq



Gwendolyn McGrif f, Deputy Director, Legal, Legislative & Regulatory 
Af fairs

MARKET REGULATORY ACTION
POTENTIAL INDICATORS

Code ProvisionsAllegation
See e.g., § 38-13-70Consumer 

Complaints
See e.g., §§ 38-75-
740; 38-77- 120

Policy Nonrenewals

See e.g., §§ 38-75-
730

Policy Cancellations

See e.g., §§ 38-59-10 
et seq

Unfair Claims 
Practices 

See e.g., §§ 38-57-10 
et seq

Unfair Trade 
Practices



MARKET REGULATORY ACTION



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

MARKET REGULATION
5-YEAR PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

ActionYearCompany Name
$45,7502023Companion Life Insurance 

Company
No penalty2023Insurance Services Office, Inc. 

(ISO)
No penalty2022American Association of Insurance 

Services
No penalty2021National Council on Compensation 

Insurance, Inc.
$10,4232021Freedom Life Insurance Company 

of America
$5,4532020Principal Life Insurance Company 

of America



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

MARKET CONDUCT EXAMINATION
Historical Information

Regulatory Settlement 
Agreement

SC’s PaymentSign-On DateCompany Name

No Regulatory PenaltyNAAmerican Association of 
Insurance Services

No Administrative Penalty2021NCCI

$5,4532020Principal Life Insurance 
Company

Regulatory Settlement 
Agreement

$44,7386/15/2016AXA Equitable  Life 
Insurance Company & 
Affiliates



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

MARKET CONDUCT EXAMINATION
Historical Information

Regulatory Settlement 
Agreement

SC’s PaymentSign-On DateCompany Name

$52,4979-7-2023Freedom Life Insurance Company

No Regulatory PenaltyAmerican Association of Insurance 
Services

$8,2932/12/18American Family Life Assurance of 
Columbus (AFLAC) and Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement Agreement$19,452Ameriprise / Riversource Life Insurance 
Company & Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement Agreement$2,4967/18/2019Allstate Life Insurance Company & 
Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement Agreement$6,9537/18/2019Great West Life & Annuity Insurance 
Company and Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement Agreement$4,5302/12/18Protective Life Insurance Company

Regulatory Settlement Agreement$4,6352/12/18State Farm Life Insurance Company & 
Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement Agreement$13,2129/26/16Securian Life Insurance Company & 
Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement Agreement$27,3339/26/16Hartford Life and Accident & Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement Agreement$44,7386/15/2016AXA Equitable  Life Insurance 
Company & Affiliates



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

MARKET CONDUCT EXAMINATION
Historical Information

Regulatory Settlement 
Agreement

SC’s PaymentSign-On DateCompany Name

Regulatory Settlement 
Agreement

$1,648,129.956/14/2012AIG and Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement 
Agreement

$82,621.049/30/2013ING Life Insurance and Annuity 
Company and Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement 
Agreement

$48,89310/10/2012Nationwide Insurance 
Company and Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement 
Agreement

$185,89312/3/13New York Life Insurance 
Company & Affiliates

Regulatory Settlement 
Agreement

$236,2662/2/12Prudential Insurance 
Company of America



Gwendolyn McGrif f ,  Deputy Director,  Legal ,  Leg is lat ive & Regulatory Af fairs

Performance Snapshot
FY 2020-21FY 2021-22FY 2022-23FY 2023-24FY 2024-25Activity

72000License 
Suspensions

5671662822License 
Revocations

$1,458,472$55,866$1,327,225$66,250$1,594,340Administrative 
Fines & Penalties 
Collected

Not available$394,033$369,000
(SCHC)

$54,724,553
(Consumers Choice)
$2,800,000
(Oceanus)

$103,048
(TIS)

Other Fees 
Collected 
(Receiverships)



Gwendolyn McGrif f ,  Deputy Director,  Legal ,  Leg is lat ive & Regulatory Af fairs

Performance Snapshot



Gwendolyn McGrif f ,  Deputy Director,  Legal ,  Leg is lat ive & Regulatory Af fairs

Performance Snapshot



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

OVERVIEW OF PRACTICE AREAS



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

LEGAL PRACTICE AREA
CONTRACTS AND PROCUREMENT



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

CONTRACT WORKFLOW
Request to 

review/ draft an 
agreement

File is opened and 
Contract/Request 
will be assigned to 

an attorney

Contract  and 
accompanying 

documentation will 
be forwarded to the 
assigned attorney

Attorney will meet with 
authorized representatives of 
the business unit about the 

terms and conditions for the 
contract

If additional modifications are 
necessary, attorney makes the 
modifications to the agreement 
and sends to the business unit 

for review

Draft agreement presented to 
other parties for review

If revisions to the draft are 
necessary, attorney works with 

business on modifications

Once terms and conditions 
are confirmed with the 
business unit, attorne
prepares a contract for 

review

Once final draft has been 
developed, contract is 

presented to other party for 
review and execution

Once executed contract is received 
from other party, it is presented to 

Director or Deputy Director of 
Administration for execution

Fully executed contract is 
distributed to all parties, the 

business unit and Deputy Director 
for Administration

Fully executed agreement is 
uploaded into document 
management system and 

contract repository

Attorney prepares a short file 
closure memo for the file and 

contract expiration date is 
noted in the system

File is closed in the 
system



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

CONTRACTS
• Contracts involving the Department 

as a party  or work of the 
Department should be forwarded to 
the Office of General Counsel for 
review.

• Counsel may propose modifications, 
suggest changes and create contract 
drafts.  

• Counsel also offers legal guidance to 
business units including agreements 
involving independent contractors.

• Counsel also assists with 
procurement related matters as 
needed.

202320242025Activity

552Contracts 
Reviewed

611Contracts 
Drafted

111Requests for 
Qualifications

111MOA b/w 
State 
Agencies



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

LEGAL PRACTICE AREA
SERVICE OF PROCESS



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

• “Service of process” is the legal process for 
formally delivering certain legal documents 
(including lawsuits, subpoenas, or other legal 
processes or notices). An agent for service of 
process can accept the legal documents on behalf 
of a person or business.



Gwendolyn McGrif f, Deputy Director, Legal, Legislative & Regulatory Af fairs

SERVICE OF PROCESS
Lawsuits Against Insurers Must be Served on the Director of Insurance

Under South Carolina law, the
Director is the lawful attorney for
service of process. This means
that every lawsuit against an
insurance company is served
upon the Department, and the
Department forwards it to the
appropriate address for the
insurer.

Code Provision

…every insurer shall appoint in writing the 
director [of the Department of Insurance] to be its 
lawful attorney upon whom all legal process and 
action or proceeding against it must be served.

38-5-70

…provides that the summons and any other legal 
process in any action against it must be served on 
an insurance company as defined in Section § 38-
1-20 by delivering two copies of the summons or 
other legal process to the Director of the 
Department of Insurance.

15-9-270



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

SERVICE OF PROCESS TEAM

General 
Counsel

Associate 
General 
Counsel

Administrative 
Coordinator Paralegal

FunctionRole
• Receives and processes the 

pleadings in accordance with 
SC law

• Serves documents approved 
by counsel

Administrative Coordinator

• Supervises the process
• Reviews the processed 

documents to ensure they 
comply with applicable SC law 
and signs the correspondence 
accepting the documents for 
service

Associate General Counsel

• Backs up the Administrative 
Coordinator as needed

Paralegal



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

SERVICE OF PROCESS
WORKFLOW

Documents are 
received for service

Documents are 
reviewed to determine 

whether they are 
servable

If documents are 
servable, they are 

served the same day.

If documents name an 
insurer that is not licensed, 

the attorney may be 
contacted and given an 

opportunity to correct the 
issue in writing



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

SERVICE OF PROCESS STATISTICS
Fiscal Year 24-25

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25

Fiscal Year ‘24-25 Service of Process

All Returned Open Closed



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

SERVICE OF PROCESS STATISTICS
Fiscal Year 21-25



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

LEGAL PRACTICE AREA
INFORMATION LAW AND DATA PRIVACY



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

INFORMATION LAW & INTERNAL OPERATIONS
PERFORMANCE METRICS

• Business Units Supported:
– Administration & Strategic Planning

• Information Technology
• Records Management

• Provides the following Legal 
Services:
– Service of Process
– FOIA Requests & Subpoenas
– IT Legal support
– Administration & Strategic Planning

• Information Technology
• Records Management



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

FOIA STATISTICS

Requests Pending 
at Year End

Total Number 
Denied due to 
Exemption

Total No# 
Processed in FY

Total No# 
Received in FY

Fiscal Year

111063732025
0242422024
0126262023
0462622022
0356562021

NFOIA Requests Received, Processed and Pending



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

FOIA WORKFLOW



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

SUBPOENA STATISTICS

Requests Pending 
at Year End

Total Number 
Denied/Motion to 
Quash

Total No# 
Processed in FY

Total No# 
Received in FY

Fiscal Year

12022025

10112024

01562023

01042022

01032021

Subpoena Requests Received, Processed and Pending



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

LEGAL PRACTICE AREA
FINANCIAL AND SOLVENCY REGULATION



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

LEGAL PRACTICE AREA

Financial Regulation & 
Solvency Regulation Team

Counsel reviews and drafts legal documents pertaining to 
the following:
• Insurance company licensing, including licensing of traditional insurance 

companies in their state of domicile and additional states, and drafting 
corporate formation documents

• Redomestication from one domicile to another
• Fundamental transactions of mutual insurance companies, including 

conversion to stock insurance companies and bulk reinsurance and 
assumption agreements.

• Representation of Department of Insurance in legal proceedings or  
adjudications by other tribunals.

• Insurance Holding Company Regulatory Act compliance through drafting 
and coordination of:

– Review of applications for acquisitions of insurance companies 
through the Form A process

– Review of annual insurance company registration process, including 
submission of Form B, Annual Registration Statement; Form C, 
Changes in Annual Registration Statement; and Form F, Enterprise 
Risk Management

– Submission and regulatory approval of material inter-company 
transactions on Form D, Prior Notice of a Transaction

– Submission of disclaimers of affiliation

General Counsel

Associate General 
Counsel for 

Financial Regulation 
& Solvency

Paralegal



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

LEGAL PRACTICE AREA
Financial Regulation and Solvency Statistics

Date ClosedDate OpenedDocket NumberReceivership Name

Pending1/21/20252024-CP-06937Momentum Insurance 
Company, In 
Receivership

Stipulation of Dismissal2020-CP-40-05802Farmer v. Altman

Pending9/21/20172017-CP-40-05195Oceanus Insurance 
Company, In 
Receivership

10/20244-13-20202020-CP-10276Transportation Insurance 
Company, In 
Receivership

1/26/233/28/20162016-CP-40-00034Consumers Choice 
Insurance Company, In 
Receivership



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

LEGAL PRACTICE AREA
Financial Regulation and Solvency Statistics

Date ClosedDate OpenedDocket NumberReceivership Name

2009-CP-40-1895Continental Life 
Insurance Company, In 
Receivership

12-5-168-1-20052005-CP-40-0203Employers Life Insurance 
Company, In 
Receivership

11-14-201410-12-20102010-CP-40-7093Guardian Healthcare, In 
Receivership

12-9-20132010-CP-40-2805Gulf Builders Insurance 
Company, In 
Receivership

10-26-200911-27-20022002-CP-40-4909Piedmont Insurance 
Company, In 
Receivership



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

LEGAL PRACTICE AREA
Financial Regulation and Solvency Statistics

Date ClosedDate OpenedDocket NumberReceivership Name

1-30-20253-21-200505-CP-40-01230SCIC/CAIC, In 
Receivership

8/20139-21-200101-CP-40-3146Commercial Truckers 
RRG, In Receivership

11-29-2017November 1, 20072007-CP-40-5987CARRG, In Receivership

2017September 24, 20122012-CP-40-6360Jamestown

10/15/19October 21, 20142014-CP-40-5987First Keystone RRG

8-1-201720142014-CP-40-6596Taurus Insurance 
Company



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

LEGISLATIVE & REGULATORY POLICY
LEGAL PRACTICE AREA



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

Legislative & Regulatory Policy

GENERAL 
COUNSEL

Senior 
Paralegal

Administrative 
Coordinator

• The Office is in the process of securing permission to post the 
Legislative Counsel’s position

• The responsibilities performed by this position include:
– Monitoring legislation that impacts insurance regulation at a state 

and national level
– Monitor NAIC model laws that affect the Department’s 

accreditation
– Work with the business units on legislative recommendations to 1) 

add additional code provisions and 2) to repeal or modify existing 
statutes or regulations.

– Review bills that are filed that impact the business of insurance
– Prepare legislative summaries of bills impacting  the South Carolina 

Department of Insurance
– Maintain a repository of legislation recommended by the 

Department and their summaries.
– Maintain the official repository of Department policies, procedures, 

guidelines and handbooks



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

Preliminary Examples of Proposed Regulation Changes
Proposed 
Action

Preliminary 
Needs Analysis

Regulation 
Purpose

Division 
Responsible

PurposeReg#

See Exhibit 1 with proposed changes.The regulation needs to be modified.  It 
contains references to terms that are no 
longer used in the Code. For example, 
the regulation defines Chief Insurance 
Commissioner.  The term “Director of 
Insurance” replaced Chief Insurance 
Commissioner “ in 1995.  There are 
other examples such as agent  which 
has been replaced in the Code with the 
term “producer.”.

This regulation defines terms used 
throughout Title 38.

All DivisionsThis regulation contains definitions of terms used in Title 38. 

69-3

Regulation is still applicable and is 
being followed by the Department; no 
amendments are necessary.

This regulation was last amended in 
2020.  See CSR 44-6 Doc. No. 4931.  
reviewing this matter.

This regulation is aimed at consumer 
protection and sets forth the readability 
standards insurers must comply with in 
the drafting of insurance policies.  The 
amendments give the insurer the option 
of providing a certification that the form 
meets the Flesch Kincaid readability 
standard or to provide the actual score 
to the Department for its review and 
approval

Actuarial/Market ServicesSets for insurance policy readability standards

69-5.1

This regulation is still needed.  It was 
last amended in 1997. The reserve 
tabulations may need to be updated.  
The Department is currently reviewing 
this matter.

This impacts the reserves insurers must 
hold for certain insurance products.

Actuarial & Market Services; Financial 
Regulation & Solvency

Minimum Reserve Standards 69-7

Regulations require Basic Statistical plan to 

be filed with an annual statement. Filing 
requirements and compliance may be 

overseen by Financial. Suggestion to codify 
regulation due to importance and 

permanence of purpose and contents.

This regulation is still needed and 

applicable.

This regulation replaces Regulation 69-11 

and provides one comprehensive 
regulation for all insurance sold in 

connection with the Consumer Finance Act 
or the Consumer Protection Code, as 

amended.

ActuarialRegulation of Credit Insurance69-11.1



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

Preliminary Examples of Proposed Regulation Changes 

Proposed ActionPreliminary Needs 
Analysis

Regulation PurposeDivision 
Responsible

PurposeReg#

The deductible options and sole 
segmentation on age are obsolete. 
Many insurance companies have 
much more robust rating 
algorithms that better capture risk 
for motorcycle coverage. The 
department is not currently 
following enforcement of the 
regulation due to being obsolete. 
Suggest to withdraw the 
regulation. 

This regulation is outdated and 
should be withdrawn. Regulation 
adopted in 1976

The purpose of this regulation was  to 
amend portions of Order O9-74 which 
promulgated a uniform class plan and 
territory plan for motorcycle risks.

For physical damage insurance 
purposes, the subgroups are 
discontinued and the class plan is 
amended to provide for a rate per 
$100.00 of the original cost new for all 
physical damage coverages.  

Actuarial/Product RegulationUniform Class and Territorial Plans-Motorcycles69-13.3

This regulation may require 
updating. It was last updated in 
2011.

This regulation was last 
amended in 1974. It is still 
needed but does require some 

updating.

The purpose of these rules is to assure 
truthful and adequate disclosure of all 
material and relevant information in 
the advertising of accident and sickness 
insurance 

Actuarial/Product RegulationAdvertising of Accident and Health Insurance69-17

The purpose of this regulation is to require 
producers, as defined in this regulation, to 
act in the best interest of the consumer 
when making a recommendation of an 
annuity and to require insurers to establish 
and maintain a system to supervise 
recommendations and to set forth standards 
and procedures for recommendations so 
that the insurance needs and financial 
objectives of consumers at the time of the 
transaction are appropriately addressed.

Actuarial/Market ServicesSuitability in Annuity Transactions69-29



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

LEGAL PRACTICE AREA
RISK MANAGEMENT



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Ethics Training & 
Newsletters

Privacy Training & 
Newsletters

Leadership Training Series One of the primary functions of the Office is to  help reduce the agency’s risk of 
exposure to legal liability. Counsel engages in the practice of preventive law 
through tory decisions.  Providing advice in advance of decisions through 
participation in proactive planning and the pre-decision phases of regulatory 
decisions may avoid or mitigate legal action.. 

These are some of the risk management strategies we have employed.



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

OFFICE LEGAL, LEGISLATIVE & 
REGULATORY AFFAIRS

Challenges & Opportunities



Gwendolyn McGriff,  Deputy Director,  Legal,  Legislative & Regulatory 
Affairs

Challenges & Opportunities

Attracting, recruiting and retaining qualified 
employees committed to the Department’s mission 
and public service

Increasing office efficiency by effectively leveraging 
technology to preserve institutional knowledge

Understanding the generational differences in the 
workplace to promote the success of the agency

Training a workforce that can think beyond the 
checklist or the technology



Organization of the Financial Regulation & Solvency Division (31)

Deputy Director Geoffrey R. Bonham, JD, PIR

Chief Financial Analyst 
Ryan Basnett, ARM, PIR, CISR

“Traditional” Insurers Analysis Supervising Fin. Examiner (1) - Vacant

Supervising Financial Analysts (2) Financial Examiners (4)

Financial Analysts (5)

Chief Financial Examiner
Linda G. Haralson, CFE, FLMI, CIE, ARE, 

CPCU, CFE

Captives Director (Charleston)
Andrew Noga, JD

Captives Financial Analysis

Supervising Financial Analysts (2*) –
1 Vacant (Chas.)

Financial Analysts (6*)

Administrative Coordinator (1)

*One in Charleston Office



Office of Pharmacy Benefit Manager Oversight & 
Specialty Licensing

Manager- Renee Bouye

Pharmacist – Rebecca Gillespie, Pharm. D.

Insurance Analyst (1)

Program Coordinator (3)

Organization of the Financial Regulation & Solvency Division 
(Cont’d)



South Carolina Department of Insurance
Division of Financial Regulation & Solvency

Ryan Basnett
Chief Financial Analyst

(Traditional)
Audits Director

60025941 - AN27

Peyton Eilers
Financial Analyst
Senior Auditor 

60026038 - AN21

Taylor Berry 
Financial Analyst
Senior Auditor 

60025942 - AN21

Vacant
Supervising Financial 

Analyst
Audits Manager II
60026127 - AN25

Hinal Patel
Senior Analyst

Audits Manager I
60025945 - AN23

Meng Tong Zang
Financial Analyst

Senior Auditor
60025849 - AN21

Kristin Barrett
Financial Analyst

Audits Mgr. I
60026044 - AN23

Andrew Noga
Captives Director

Program Manager III
60025947- AH55

Cynthia Dublin-Cauley
Financial Examiner 

Audits Mgr I
60025936 - AN23

Thomas Baldwin
Traditional Supervising 

Analyst
Audits Mgr. II

60025939 - AN25

Deonna Green
Licensing Coordinator

60025933 – AN21

Erin Beck 
Financial Examiner

Senior Auditor
60025937 - AN21

Carrie Mitchell
Financial Examiner 

Audits Mgr I
60025940 - AN23

Vacant
Financial Examiner 
Audits Manager I 
60026043 - AN23

Katrina Fisher
Senior Auditor 

61056776 - AN21

Linda Haralson - NG
Chief Financial Examiner

Audits Director 
61102024-AN27

Kyson Weathersbee
Senior Auditor 

60026049 - AN21

Stacy Johnson
Admin Coordinator
60026045 - AH10

Adam McDade
Financial Analyst
Senior Auditor 

60025935 - AN21

Kendall 
Guthrie

Financial Analyst
Senior Auditor 

60025729 - AN21

Christina Lovette
Business Plan Change 

Analyst
Senior Auditor 

60026033 - AN21

Geoffrey Bonham
Office of  Financial Regulation & 

Solvency
Deputy Director
60026036-UA03

Rebecca Gillespie
Pharmacist I- Temp

61152515-EB25

D. Renee Bouye
Diane Renee Bouye

PBM Manager
61096261-AH45

Magaly Rosa
Program Coordinator I 

PBM Licensing
61096448-AH35

Kristina Siebles
Program Coordinator I

PBM Licensing
60025828- AH35

Sierra Folder
Program Coordinator I

PBM Licensing
60025731

John Michael Alexander
Supervising Financial

Analyst
Audits Manager II
60026047- AN25

Summer Schwedes
Intern

Program Assistant
61155566-AH30

Isabelle Bennett
Intern

Program Assistant
61155813-AH30

Peyton Brown
Financial Analyst

Senior Auditor
60026042-AN21

Gabriella Kelly
Financial Analyst

Senior Auditor
60025732 - AN21

Jeannie Anonie
Program Coordinator I

PBM Licensing



01

03

05

02

04

The Division of Financial Regulation and Solvency 
oversees many key areas of responsibility for the 
Department.

Regulates the financial solvency of our domestic 
industry 

Maintains our accreditation by the National Association 
of Insurance Commissioners

Licenses and monitors non-domestic companies 
writing business in South Carolina

Implements new regulatory standards in response to 
legislative changes

Responds to systemic financial crises impacting 
insurers that are members of a holding company 
system

06 Grows the domestic captive insurance industry in 
SC



The State-Based Insurance Financial Regulatory Framework

United States v. South-Eastern Underwriters Association, 322 U.S. 533 (1944)

Historically, insurance policies were not considered interstate commerce, allowing states to regulate the industry;

however, the High Court concluded that insurance transactions across state lines constitute interstate commerce and fall
under federal jurisdiction pursuant to the Commerce Clause of the U.S. Constitution.

In response, Congress enacted the McCarran-Ferguson Act in 1945, reaffirming state authority over the “business of 
insurance”: 

15 U.S. Code § 1011 - Declaration of policy

Congress hereby declares that the continued regulation and taxation by the several States of the business of
insurance is in the public interest, and that silence on the part of the Congress shall not be construed to impose any
barrier to the regulation or taxation of such business by the several States.

Department of Treasury v. Fabe, 508 U.S. 491 (1993)

Normally, if a state law conflicts with a federal law, the federal law prevails under the Supremacy Clause. However,
because of the McCarran-Ferguson Act, when a federal statute conflicts with a state law protecting or regulating, directly 
or indirectly, the “policy relationship between insurer and insured,” the federal statute “must yield.” (“Reverse
federalism”).



Problem

With no controlling federal standard, the legislatures of each state pass their own laws
governing the “business of insurance” within their borders, and absent coordination and
uniformity between and among the states, insurance companies would be subject to
dozens of different statutory and regulatory requirements and standards.



Solution

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC)

• NAIC facilitates confidential communication between state insurance regulators

• NAIC serves as a central filing facility for financial reports

• NAIC financial analysis and examination handbooks and tools

• NAIC Model Laws and Regulations

• Recent adoption of model laws and regulations:

• S.C. Act No. 17 of 2025 (Amendments to the Insurance Holding Company Regulatory Act to conform to amendments to
NAIC Model Act #440)

• Amendments to Regulation 69-14 (Amendments to the Insurance Holding Company Regulation to conform to amendments
to NAIC Model Regulation #450)

• NAIC Accreditation



NAIC Accreditation

• Accreditation assures that all other states can rely on the insurance company financial regulation efforts
of any single state with regard to insurance companies domiciled in the latter, so that the non-
domiciliary states are not surprised by a sudden and unforeseen insurance company insolvency
adversely affecting policyholders residing in each of their states.

• Entails a detailed review of statutes and regulations, financial analysis, financial examinations,
experience and ability of staff and more.

• Examination and inspection by NAIC accreditation team every five years (South Carolina’s
accreditation was renewed in 2021, is up for review in 2026).



Key Statutory Authority



Title 38 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina

“The Insurance Law”

Section 38-3-110(2) Duties of Director of the Department of Insurance

The director or his designee has the following duties . . . (2) see that all laws of this State governing insurers or relating to the business of insurance
are faithfully executed and make regulations to carry out this title and all other insurance laws of this State, the enforcement or administration of which
is not otherwise specifically provided for;

Section 38-5-120 Revocation or suspension of certificate of authority; publication of notice; hearing.

(A)The director or his designee shall revoke or suspend certificates of authority granted to an insurer and its officers and agents if he is of the opinion 
upon examination or other evidence that one or more of the following exist:

(1) The insurer is in an unsound condition.

(2) The insurer has not complied with the law or with the provisions of its charter.

(3) The officers or agents of an insurer refuse to submit to examination or to perform a legal obligation relative to an examination.

(4) The insurer has not complied with a lawful order of the director or his designee.

(5) The condition of the insurer renders the continuance of its business hazardous to the general public, its creditors, or its policyholders.



Note:  Under Subsection(A)(5), in determining whether “the continued operation of an insurer transacting insurance business in this State is hazardous to 
the general public, its creditors, or its policyholders,” the director or his designee may consider certain enumerated factors, including

• Adverse findings reported in financial condition and market conduct examination reports, audit reports, and actuarial opinions, reports, or 
summaries;

• The National Association of Insurance Commissioners Insurance Regulatory Information System (IRIS), and its other financial analysis solvency 
tools (FAST) and reports;

• Whether management of an insurer has filed a false or misleading sworn financial statement, released a false or misleading financial statement to 
lending institutions or to the general public, made a false or misleading entry, or omitted an entry of a material amount in the books of the insurer;

• Whether the insurer has failed to meet financial and holding company filing requirements in the absence of a reason satisfactory to the director or 
his designee;

• Whether the insurer has grown so rapidly and to an extent that it lacks adequate financial and administrative capacity to meet its obligations in a 
timely manner;

• Whether the insurer has experienced or will experience in the foreseeable future cash flow or liquidity problems;

• Whether management has established reserves that do not comply with minimum standards established by state insurance laws, regulations, 
statutory accounting standards, sound actuarial principles, and standards of practice;

• Whether management persistently engages in material underreserving that results in adverse loss development;

• Whether transactions among affiliates, subsidiaries, or controlling persons for which the insurer receives assets or capital gains, or both, do 
not provide sufficient value, liquidity, or diversity to assure the ability of the insurer to meet its outstanding obligations as they mature; and

• Any other finding determined by the director or his designee to be hazardous to the insurer's policyholders, creditors, or general public.



CHAPTER 9 

Capital, Surplus, Reserves, and Other Financial Matters

• Capital and Surplus Requirements (Section 38-9-10 through -60)

• Special Deposits (Sections 38-9-70 through -160)

• Loss and Claim Reserves (Section 38-9-190)

• Credit for Reinsurance (Section 38-9-200 through -220. See also S.C. Code Regs 69-53)

• “Insurance for Insurers”

• Means that an insurer can treat amounts due from reinsurers as assets or reductions of liabilities.

• Conditions for doing so depend on the status of the reinsurer. 

• Confidentiality of Actuarial Documents Accompanying Financial Statements (Section 38-9-230)

• Statement of Actuarial Opinion treated as a public document

• Actuarial Report and Actuarial Opinion Summary are confidential and privileged, are not subject 
to subpoena, and are not subject to discovery or admissible in evidence in any private civil 
action.



Article 3 of Chapter 9: Risk-Based Capital

A Key Tool of Insurance Financial Regulators

• One important tool used by state insurance regulators for ensuring that insurance companies are solvent and thus can
fulfill their financial obligations to policyholders is the statutorily-prescribed risk-based capital (RBC) requirement.

• The RBC requirement is a statutory minimum level of capital that is based on two factors: 1) an insurance company’s size;
and 2) the inherent riskiness of its financial assets and operations.

• Separate RBC formulas are used for each of three primary insurance lines of business: life and fraternal, property and
casualty, and health. The differences in RBC across lines of business reflect differences in the economic environments
facing these companies; however, the formulation is roughly the same. All add up the main risks insurance companies
commonly face, considering potential dependencies among these risks, and allowing for the benefits of diversification.

• For example, RBC requirements in life insurance are based on five categories of risk:

 Insurance affiliates and Misc. Other- risk from declining value of insurance subsidiaries as well as risk from off-
balance sheet and other misc. accounts (e.g., DTAs).

 Asset risk- risks associated with investments held by the insurer, including bond default or equity (stocks) loss of
market value.

 Underwriting risk - the amount of surplus (assets – liabilities) available to offset possible losses from excess claims.

 Interest rate risk - risk from potential losses due to changing interest rates.

 Business risk- operational risks, e.g., the potential for losses or insolvency due to poor management.



Risk-Based Capital (Continued)

• The health and property and casualty RBC formulas are similar but there are variances, e.g., interest rate risk is
included only in the life formula.

• Under the statutory RBC scheme, the Department is given the legal authority to take preventive and corrective
measures, the intrusiveness of which depends on the level of capital deficiency indicated by the RBC ratio.

• The RBC ratio itself is typically expressed as the total capital of the company (as determined by the RBC formula)
divided by the company's risk-based capital (as determined by the formula).

If the RBC ratio is at or above 200%, no regulatory intervention is needed. Below that, four levels of regulatory intervention
are prescribed:

Company Action Level: Less than 200% but greater than or equal to 150%

• Company submits Company Action Plan to the Department for approval

Regulatory Action Level: Less than 150% but greater than or equal to than 100% ensuring that insurance companies can
fulfill their financial obligations to policyholders

• Minimally intrusive regulatory action by Department authorized

Authorized Control Level: Less than 100 but greater than or equal to 70%

• Regulatory control, i.e., supervision, rehabilitation or liquidation – is authorized but not mandated

Mandatory Control Level: Less than 70%

• Supervision, rehabilitation or liquidation is mandatory. Director “must” take control.



Chapter 12 of Title 38
Investments of Insurers Act

Act No. 319 of 2002, § 1 – “The legislative intent of this chapter is to protect the interests of the insured in this State
by promoting insurer solvency and financial strength, to be accomplished through the application of investment
standards that facilitate a reasonable balance of the following objectives”

(1) Preserving principal

(2) Assuring reasonable diversification as to type of investment, issuer, and credit quality

(3) Allowing insurers to allocate investments in a manner consistent with principles of prudent investment
management to achieve a return adequate to meeting obligations to insureds and financial strength sufficient to
cover reasonably foreseeable contingencies.

NEW: Act No. 17 of 2025, §§ 9-11 – Clarifies “single issuer” limitation

Amends definition of “person” to include its affiliates and subsidiaries and limits concentration in investments
issued by a single person to five percent.



Chapter 13 of Title 38

Examinations, Investigations, Records and Reports

S.C. Code Ann. § 38-13-10(A) - Examination of Insurers

“The director or his examiners may conduct a financial examination under this chapter of an insurer or health
maintenance organization (HMO) or other licensee as authorized by this title as often as the director or his designee
consider appropriate but, at a minimum, shall conduct a financial examination of every insurer licensed in this State
not less frequently than once every five years. When the director or his designee considers it prudent for the
protection of policyholders in this State, he may examine or have examined an insurer applying for admission in this
State. In scheduling and determining the nature, scope, and frequency of the examinations, the director or his
designee shall consider compliance with relevant South Carolina laws and regulations, the results of financial
statement analyses and ratios, changes in management or ownership, actuarial opinions, reports of independent
certified public accountants, and other criteria set forth in the Financial Condition Examiners' Handbook adopted by
the National Association of Insurance Commissioners and in effect when the director or his designee exercises his
authority under this subsection.”

S.C. Code Ann. § 38-13-30 - Procedures for Examination Report and Order of Director

The examiner in charge files with the Department a verified written report of examination under oath no later
than sixty days following completion of the examination.

Upon receipt of the verified report, the Department transmits the report to the insurer, affording the insurer not
more than thirty days to make a written submission or rebuttal.



Upon the expiration of the thirty-day period allowed for receipt of written submissions or rebuttals, the Director
or his designee shall consider and review the report with written submissions or rebuttals and relevant
portions of the examiner's work papers and enter an order either (1) adopting the examination report as filed or
with modification or corrections, (2) rejecting the examination report with directions to the examiners to reopen the
examination, or (3) calling for an investigatory hearing with no less than twenty days' notice to the insurer to
obtain additional documentation, data, information, and testimony.

The order may be served upon the insurer by certified mail or electronic mail, with a copy of the adopted
examination report.

Within thirty days of the issuance of the adopted report, the insurer shall file affidavits executed by each of
its directors under oath affirming receipt.

Confidentiality

Upon completion of the examination report the Director or his designee holds the content of the examination
report as private and confidential information for the thirty-day period provided for written submissions or
rebuttals.

If after thirty days after the examination report has been submitted to the insurer it has neither notified the
Director of its acceptance and approval of the report nor requested a hearing, the report must be filed as a
public document.

Subject to certain specified exceptions, all work papers, recorded information, documents “produced by,
obtained by, or disclosed” in the course of an examination are confidential and not subject to subpoena,
and must not be made public without consent or court order.



The Seven Phases of Insurance Company Financial 
Examinations

Phase 1 – Understand the Company and Identify KFAs to be Reviewed

In Phase 1 of a risk-focused examination, the insurer’s key functional activities (KFAs) are identified using
background information gathered on the company from various sources. In addition, the insurer’s corporate
governance processes and practices are evaluated and assessed.

Phase 2 – Identify and Assess Inherent Risk in Activities

Phase 2 requires the examiner to identify specific risks within the key functional activities, including business and
prospective risks. The examiner should consider potential events that, if they occur, may affect the entity when
determining risks.

Phase 3 – Identify and Evaluate Risk Mitigation Strategies

Phase 3 requires the identification and evaluation of the insurer’s risk mitigation strategies/controls that are in place
to mitigate the inherent risks identified in Phase 2. The exam team should focus on identifying and understanding
controls/strategies that the insurer has in place and consider whether they appear to be designed appropriately to
mitigate risk. If so, the exam team should test the controls/strategies for operating effectiveness and conclude on
whether they effectively mitigate the inherent risks identified.

Phase 4 – Determine Residual Risk

Residual Risk is assessed by determining how well the risk mitigation strategies/controls mitigate the level of
inherent risk in the insurer’s activities. In limited circumstances it may be appropriate to adjust the calculated
residual risk by applying examiner judgment.



The Seven Phases of Insurance Company Financial Examinations (cont’d)

Phase 5 – Establish/Conduct Detail Examination Procedures

In Phase 5, the nature and extent of detail testing to address residual risks is determined and testing is conducted and documented to 
support exam findings and conclusions.

Phase 6 – Update Prioritization and Supervisory Plan

Relevant and material findings resulting from the risk assessment effort and other examination activities should be utilized and
incorporated into determining (or validating) the priority of the insurer, as well as establishing the ongoing Supervisory Plan. The
examination team should utilize the Summary Review Memorandum to communicate key findings and recommendations
to the assigned financial analyst.

Phase 7 – Draft Examination Report and Management Letter

The Examination Report should cover significant findings of fact, as well as general information about the insurer and its financial
condition as outlined in the Handbook. The Management Letter (if used) should communicate significant results and observations
noted during the examination that are not appropriate or necessary for inclusion in the public report.



Risk-Focused Financial Examination
• The primary purpose of a risk-focused examination is to review and evaluate an insurer’s business processes and controls

(including the quality and reliability of corporate governance) to assist in assessing and monitoring its current financial
condition and prospective solvency.

• As part of this process, the examiner identifies and evaluates risks that could cause an insurer’s surplus to be materially
misstated both currently and prospectively. To perform this task efficiently and effectively, examinations are planned in
advance.

• The risk-focused surveillance framework is designed to provide continuous regulatory oversight, which includes both
the financial analysis function and the financial examination function. Coordination between the two functions is
vital to ensure appropriate oversight is maintained in an effective and efficient manner.

• The analyst continuously monitors the company and, at the beginning of an examination, can identify possible risk
areas for the examiner to explore in more detail. In addition, the examiner can gain a fuller understanding of the
insurer by, among other things discussing relevant issues with the analyst and reviewing the Insurer Profile Summary
(IPS) prepared by the analyst.

• Similarly, at the conclusion of the examination, the examiner should have gained enough knowledge to pass along
valuable insights and recommendations for follow-up to the analyst.

THUS, THE TWO FUNCTIONS OF ANALYSIS AND EXAMINATION, WHILE SEPARATE, ARE
COMPLEMENTARY AND SHARE THE COMMON GOAL OF ENSURING THAT THE INSURER CAN PAY
ALL CLAIMS WHEN DUE.



Financial Analysis

S.C. Code Ann. § 38-13-80

Requires insurers to submit annual and quarterly financial
statements

Financial analysts at the Department analyze 



Some Key Elements of the Insurance Company Financial Statement

(Property & Casualty Co.)

Jurat Page (signature page, basic directory information)

Assets

Liabilities, Surplus and Other Funds

Statement of Income

Cash Flow

Underwriting and Investment Exhibit

o Part 1- Earned Premium
o Part 1B – Premiums Written
o Part 2 – Losses Paid and Incurred
o Part 3 – Expenses

Schedules D, DA and DB - Schedules D, DA and DB help with the evaluation of yield and top-performing
securities, as well as short- and long-term investment activity.



Financial Statement (cont’d)

Schedule F – Reinsurance (“Insurance for insurers”)

Schedule P – Analysis of losses and loss expenses, with 10 years of premiums earned, losses
unpaid, and claims reported and outstanding. Losses are broken down for all lines of business,
including:

 Homeowners

 Farmowners

 Commercial Auto/Truck Liability/Medical

 Private Passenger Auto Liability/Medical

 Workers' Compensation

 Commercial Multi-Peril

 Medical Malpractice

 Auto Physical Damage

 Mortgage Guaranty



Financial Statement (cont’d)

Schedule T – Exhibit of Premiums Written (Allocated by States and Territories)

Schedule Y – Information Concerning Activities of Insurer Members of a Holding
Company Group

Note: Some specifics will vary depending on the type of company (life, health, property
and casualty, etc.)



NAIC Financial Regulation Tools

Financial data submitted by insurance companies and aggregated at the NAIC is the foundation for the Financial
Regulation tools.

Financial data is available in its basic form through these tools.

• Company Demographics is an accumulation of data gathered from various forms of the annual financial
statement.

• Filing PDFs provide access to electronic documents stored by the NAIC for a specific insurance company’s
filing. The Filing PDF reports are in Adobe PDF format.

• Pick-a-Page reports provide financial information from selected pages of an insurance company’s annual
and quarterly statements.



NAIC Financial Regulation Tools

Other Financial Tools

Additional financial tools are available in iSite+ to assist analysts and examiners and to share information among states:

Financial Exam Electronic Tracking System (FEETS) assists examiners in the coordination of risk-focused financial condition examinations. It allows state
insurance regulators to call an examination of a multistate insurer, facilitate coordination, communicate the completion of an examination and share the
completed version of the department’s examination report.

myNAIC is a gateway for state regulators and insurance industry users to access the numerous technology products offered. By logging into myNAIC, users
can quickly see and access with one click the individual applications which they are currently set up to use.

Financial Analysis Solvency Tools (FAST)

FAST is a collection of analytical tools designed to provide state insurance departments an integrated approach to screening and analyzing the financial
condition of insurance companies. In addition, FAST assists state insurance departments in determining allocation of department resources to those insurers
in greatest need of regulatory attention, targeting those specific aspects of an insurer’s financial position that could put the insurer at risk of future insolvency.



NAIC Financial Regulation Tools (cont’d)

Insurance Retrieval Information System (IRIS) 

IRIS assists in the prioritization of insurers for regulator
review. The calculated results for each insurer are
compared to the usual range of results for each ratio.

Global Receivership Information Database (GRID) allows the
regulator to review the status of a receivership (e.g.,
conservatorship, rehabilitation or liquidation). GRID information
includes contacts, company demographics, post receivership
data, creditor class/claim data, legal data, financial data and
reporting data.



myNAIC

Gateway to NAIC Financial Tools



iSite+



NAIC Financial Analysis Handbook
The NAIC Financial Analysis Handbook (Handbook) is to be used in conjunction with the 2024

Annual and 2025 Quarterly Financial Statements.

In 2017, the Handbook was revised to incorporate a risk-focused framework approach for financial
analysis. This analysis framework identifies and assesses risks based on the nine branded risk
classifications to complete and document an overall assessment of the financial solvency condition
of the insurer (Insurer profile summary - IPS) and insurance holding company group (group
profile summary - GPS).

The Nine Branded Risks are:

1. Credit

2. Legal

3. Liquidity

4. Market

5. Operational

6. Pricing/Underwriting

7. Reputation

8. Reserving

9.  Strategic



The Branded Risk Classification Heat Map

The nine branded risks (credit, legal, liquidity, market, operational, 
pricing/underwriting, reputation, reserving and strategic) are rated 
along two axes: Assessment (No/Minimal Concern, Moderate 
Concern and Significant Concern); and Trend (Increasing, Static and 
Decreasing):

Increasing 
↑

T

Static 
r

Decreasing 
↓

e

Significant ConcernModerate ConcernNo/Minimal Concernn

d

Assessment



Financial Analysis Master Status Report
All domestic insurers are tracked on the Financial Analysis Master Status Report, an internal DOI document, which shows budget dates for when the analyst 
is to complete each assigned company. It also shows when the supervisor has completed their review and ensures the timelines defined by the NAIC are 
met.

After each filing of a financial statement by a domestic insurer, depending on the priority of the company, there is a defined time limit for reviewing the 
company.

The analysis of priority insurers (1-2) should be completed by the analyst and reviewed by the supervisor by: 

 Annual statements and actuarial-related filings: End of April.

 Quarterly statements: Within 60 days from receipt of filing. 

 Supplemental filings (excluding holding company filings): Within 60 days from receipt of filing. 

 Holding company filings: by Oct. 31st for analysis conducted by the lead state; by Dec. 31st for analysis conducted by the domestic state. 

The analysis of non-priority insurers (3-4) should be completed by the analyst and reviewed by the supervisor by: 

 Annual statements and actuarial-related filings: End of June or if a preliminary analysis, as outlined in the NAIC Financial Analysis Handbook (Analysis 
Handbook), indicates no immediate concerns, then by the end of July.  Preliminary analysis performed and relied upon for analysis completion dates 
should be completed within two weeks from receipt of filing. 

 Quarterly statements: Within 90 days from receipt of filing. 

 Supplemental filings (excluding holding company filings): Within 120 days from receipt of filing. 

 Holding company filings: by Oct. 31st for analysis conducted by the lead state; by Dec. 31st for analysis conducted by the domestic state. 



Financial Analysis Master Status Report



Insurance Accounting Basics

Statutory Accounting  (Regulation 69-70)

When filing their annual and quarterly financial reports with state insurance departments, including SCDOI, insurers in all states are required to use a special 
accounting system as statutory accounting principles (SAP). 

SAP accounting is more conservative than generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and is designed to ensure that insurers have sufficient 
capital and surplus to cover all anticipated insurance-related obligations. 

SAP and GAAP differ principally in matters of timing of expenses, tax accounting, the treatment of capital gains and accounting for surplus. 

SAP recognizes liabilities earlier or at a higher value and recognizes assets later or at a lower value. 

While GAAP accounting focuses on a business as a going concern, SAP accounting treats insurers as if they were about to be liquidated. 

Reserves

Reserves are liabilities. They reflect an insurer’s financial obligations with respect to the insurance policies it has issued.

An insurer’s two major liabilities are loss reserves and unearned premium reserves.

• Loss Reserves: an insurance company’s best estimate of what it will pay in the future for claims.

• Unearned Premium Reserves: Premiums paid for coverage that has not yet been used because the policy has not expired. E.g. policyholder pays in 
advance for one-year policy but cancels after three months; insurance company must refund premium attributable to the unused nine months of coverage.



Insurance Accounting Basics (cont’d)

Note: Serious under-reserving may cause an insurer to overestimate its policyholder surplus (below), making its financial health appear better than it is.

Investments And Investment Income

Insurers’ investment income is made up of two main items: (1) interest, dividends and other investment earnings; and (2) realized capital gains from selling 
assets.

Property and casualty insurers in particular hold a large percentage of their investments in the form of bonds, to protect their assets against precipitous 
stock market declines, and because they can be more easily liquidated to pay claims in a major disaster than real estate and stocks. The Department 
regulates investments under Chapter 12 of Title 38.

Policyholder Surplus

Insurance companies are required to have a minimum level of capital and policyholder surplus before they can open their doors for business and 
must maintain certain levels relative to the business they assume.

Policyholder surplus is the amount of money remaining after an insurer’s liabilities are subtracted from its assets. Policyholder surplus is a 
financial cushion that protects a company’s policyholders in the event of unexpected or catastrophic losses. (In other industries it is known as “net 
worth” or “owners equity.”)

Consequences of weakened surplus are ratings downgrades, regulatory action and ultimately, if the situation is serious enough, insolvency.



Chapter 21 of Title 38
Insurance Holding Company Regulatory Act

(S.C. Code Regs. 69-14)

Selected Code Provisions

• S.C. Code Ann. § 38-21-10(2)

“The term ‘control’ (including the terms ‘controlling’, ‘controlled by’, and ‘under common control with’) means the possession, direct or indirect, of
the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by
contract other than a commercial contract for goods or nonmanagement services, or otherwise, unless the power is the result of an official
position with or corporate office held by the person. Control is presumed to exist if any person, directly, or indirectly, owns, controls, holds with
the power to vote, or holds proxies representing ten percent or more of the voting securities of any other person. This presumption may be
rebutted by a showing made in the manner provided by Section 38-21-220 [disclaimer of affiliation] that control does not exist in fact. The
director or his designee may determine, after furnishing all persons in interest notice and opportunity to be heard and making specific findings of
fact to support his determination, that control exists in fact, notwithstanding the absence of a presumption to that effect.”



Chapter 21 (cont’d) 

• S.C. Code Ann. § 38-21-60(A) (“The Form A”)

“No person, other than the issuer, may make a tender offer for or a request or invitation for tenders of, or enter into any agreement to
exchange securities for, seek to acquire or acquire, in the open market or otherwise, any voting security of a domestic insurer if, after
the consummation of the agreement, the person would directly, indirectly, by conversion, or by exercise of any right to acquire, be in
control of the insurer. No person may enter into an agreement to merge with or otherwise to acquire control of a domestic insurer
unless, at the time the offer, request, or invitation is made or the agreement is entered into, or before the acquisition of the securities
if no offer or agreement is involved, the person has filed with the department a statement containing the information required by this
section and the offer, request, invitation, agreement, or acquisition has been approved by the director or his designee in the manner
prescribed in this chapter.”

• S.C. Code Ann. § 38-21-90 – Approval of Director of Acquisition of Control and Provision for Hearing

• S.C. Code Ann. § 38-21-100 – Exemptions



Chapter 21 (cont’d)

• S.C. Code Ann. § 38-21-250(A) (“The Form D”):

“Transactions within an insurance holding company system to which an insurer subject to registration is a party are 
subject to the following standards:

(1) The terms must be fair and reasonable.

(2) Agreements for cost-sharing services and management must include provisions required by regulation 

promulgated by the department.

(3) Charges or fees for services performed must be reasonable.

(4) Expenses incurred and payment received must be allocated to the insurer in conformity with customary 

insurance accounting practices consistently applied.

(5) The books, accounts, and records of each party to all transactions must be so maintained as to clearly and 

accurately disclose the nature and details of the transactions including such accounting information as is 

necessary to support the reasonableness of the charges or fees to the respective parties.

6) The insurer's surplus as regards policyholders following any dividends or distributions to shareholder affiliates 

must be reasonable in relation to the insurer's outstanding liabilities and adequate to its financial needs.”



Chapter 21 (cont’d)

S.C. Code Ann. § 38-21-270(A) Notice and approval of extraordinary dividends or distributions required.

“No domestic insurer may pay an extraordinary dividend or make another extraordinary distribution to its 
shareholders until the director or his designee:

(1) has approved the payment, or

(2) has not disapproved the payment within fifteen days after receiving notice of the declaration.”



Act # 17 of 2025 - Amendments to Chapter 21 of Title 38

Insurance Holding Company Regulatory Act

• Implemented a group capital calculation (GCC) and liquidity stress test (LST) framework to provide U.S. insurance 
company solvency regulators with additional tools for conducting group-wide financial oversight. 

• The GCC provides regulators with an additional analytical tool for conducting group-wide supervision and assists 
regulators in holistically understanding the financial condition of non-insurance entities. It provides key financial 
information on the insurance group; quantifies risk across the insurance group; supports transparency into how capital is 
allocated; and aids in understanding whether and to what degree insurance companies are supporting the operations of 
non-insurance entities. 

• The LST was developed to provide state insurance regulators with insights into a key macroprudential risk monitored by 
the federal Financial Stability Oversight Council (FSOC)* and other jurisdictions internationally; it also enhances group 
supervision. The LST requires insurers to file the results of a specific year’s liquidity stress test to the lead state insurance 
commissioner. 



Amendments to Chapter 21 of Title 38 (cont’d)

 Established receivership provisions to ensure the continuity of essential services and 
functions to an insurer in receivership by affiliated entities and further clarify ownership 
of data and records of the insurer within the holding company.

 Revisions were also made to Holding Company Act’s provisions regarding 
“Confidential Treatment.” 

*Established in 2010 under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act, FSOC is chaired by the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury



Company Licensing

S.C. Code Ann. § 38-25-110

“It is unlawful for an insurer to transact insurance business in this State without a certificate of
authority from the director or his designee.”

NAIC Uniform Certificate of Authority Application

“The Uniform Certificate of Authority Application (UCAA) is a uniform process used only for risk-
bearing entities to obtain or amend a certificate of authority (license). A risk-bearing entity is an
insurance carrier that writes and pays claims on the policies written. The UCAA electronic portal
allows insurers to file their certificate of authority applications directly to the state.”

Licensing Committee – Reviews applications and meets to determine whether applicant should
be issued certificate of authority (COA).



Regulatory Control: Administrative Supervision, 

Rehabilitation & Liquidation

Administrative Supervision - Chapter 26 of Title 38 

• Least intrusive of the levels of regulatory control provided by the Insurance Law 

• Does not involve the judicial system 

• Normally confidential 

• Initiated by order of the Director

• Conditions warranting supervision (S.C. Code Ann. § 38-26-40)

(1) The insurer's condition renders the continuance of its business hazardous to the public or to its insureds.

(2) The insurer has exceeded its powers granted under its certificate of authority and applicable law.

(3) The insurer has failed to comply with a provision of the insurance laws of this State.

(4) The business of the insurer is being conducted fraudulently.

(5) The insurer gives its consent.



Chapter 26 (cont’d)

• Director may appoint supervisor – Department employee or outside consultant

• Costs of supervision borne by company

• Preserves assets by limiting expenditures or the taking on of additional liabilities without approval of 
the supervisor

• Administrative Supervision is terminated when none of the conditions giving rise to the supervision 
exist



Rehabilitation and Liquidation - Chapter 27 of Title 38 

Because the U.S. Bankruptcy Code does not apply to insurance companies and regulation of the business of insurance is left 
the individual states, troubled company and insolvency proceedings of South Carolina are conducted in the Court of Common 
Pleas for Richland County:

• 11 U.S. Code § 109(b)(2) & (d) defines who may be a “debtor” for the purposes of United States Bankruptcy Proceedings

• A person may be a debtor under Chapter 7 (liquidation) only if such person is not a domestic insurance company 

• “Only a railroad, a person that may be a debtor under chapter 7 of this title (except a stockbroker or a commodity broker), and
an uninsured State member bank, or a corporation organized under section 25A of the Federal Reserve Act, which operates, or
operates as, a multilateral clearing organization pursuant to section 409ௗof the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Improvement Act of 1991” may be a debtor under Chapter 11 (reorganization).

• The McCarran Ferguson Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1011-1015 

• S.C. Code Ann. § 38-27-60 (Jurisdiction and venue)



Chapter 27 (cont’d)

However, insurance company rehabilitation resembles bankruptcy reorganization (Chapter 11) proceeding, and 
liquidation resembles Chapter 7 proceedings: 

“While ‘liquidation’ contemplates the end of corporate existence, ‘rehabilitation’ involves the continuance of
corporate life and activities, and is an effort to restore and reinstate the corporation to its former condition of
successful operation and solvency.”

- Smalls v. Weed, 293 S.C. 364, 360 S.E.2d 531 (Ct. App. 1987)

The Insurers Rehabilitation and Liquidation Act (1982) is codified in Chapter 27 and is based on the NAIC Model
adopted in 1969, which in turn was based on a Wisconsin legislation passed in 1967.

Unlike administrative supervision, rehabilitation and liquidation involves the judiciary and is normally public. Costs
are borne by the company in rehabilitation or the liquidation estate.

The Act provides that the Director may petition the court for an order for rehabilitation or liquidation, and specifies
the grounds for both, as well as the powers of the rehabilitator or liquidator.

For liquidation proceedings, it prescribes detailed procedures for filing, adjudication and priority of payment of
claims of policyholders and creditors from liquidation estate assets, with top priority (after costs of administration)
given to claims on policies.



Chapter 27 (cont’d)

The Director or his designee serves as the court-appointed receiver (and may appoint a deputy) and the Court 
of Common Pleas sits as the supervising court:

“Presumably, the statute provides for the appointment of the [Director as receiver] because of his
expertise required by § 38-3-[10] . . . . . He serves as an arm of the court [and] is answerable to the
court, as is a receiver in other ordinary insolvency matters. . . . No doubt the statute recognizes the fact
that the court has neither the expertise nor the time for operating an insurance company receivership.
It accordingly required the appointment of the [Director], who has the expertise in the insurance field.
At most, the court can be expected to act in a general supervisory capacity, approving or disapproving
the recommendations and actions of the [receiver]. In like fashion, the court must resolve any disputes
arising from conflicting interests of the various parties.”

- Insurance Comm’n v. New South Life Insurance Co., 270 S.C. 612, 244 S.E.2d 289 (1978)



Regulation and Taxation of 

Risk Retention Groups (RRG) – Chapter 87

• Risk Retention Groups (RRGs) are alternative insurance entities authorized by Congress to expand insurance supply through a
simplification of insurance regulation.

• Although the McCarran-Ferguson Act of 1945 generally leaves the regulation and taxation of the business of insurance to the
individual states, with the Liability Risk Retention Act (LRRA), 15 U.S.C. §§ 3901-3906, Congress crafted a narrow exception for
risk retention groups, generally exempting them from multiple state oversight. Chapter 87 contains provisions of South Carolina
that parallel the LRRA.

• Unlike traditional insurance companies, which must be licensed in each state in which it conducts business, a RRG must only
obtain a license in its state of domicile, which is almost exclusively responsible for its regulation, and once so licensed, can do
business in any state simply by registering there. The domiciliary state thus acts as something akin to a federal licensing agency.

• Membership in risk retention and purchasing groups is typically limited to commercial enterprises and governmental bodies, and
the risks insured by these groups are limited to liability risks.



Chapter 87 (cont’d)

U.S. Code definition of Risk Retention Group (15 U.S.C. §3901(a)(4)):

“Risk retention group" means any corporation or other limited liability association—

(A) whose primary activity consists of assuming, and spreading all, or any portion, of the liability exposure of its group members;

(B) which is organized for the primary purpose of conducting the activity described under subparagraph (A);

(C) which—

(i) is chartered or licensed as a liability insurance company under the laws of a State and authorized to engage in the business of insurance under the laws of such State; or

(ii) before January 1, 1985, was chartered or licensed and authorized to engage in the business of insurance under the laws of Bermuda or the Cayman Islands and, before 
such date, had certified to the insurance commissioner of at least one State that it satisfied the capitalization requirements of such State, except that any such group shall be 
considered to be a risk retention group only if it has been engaged in business continuously since such date and only for the purpose of continuing to provide insurance to 
cover product liability or completed operations liability (as such terms were defined in this section before October 27, 1986);

(D) which does not exclude any person from membership in the group solely to provide for members of such a group a competitive advantage over such a person;

(E) which—

(i) has as its owners only persons who comprise the membership of the risk retention group and who are provided insurance by such group; or

(ii) has as its sole owner an organization which has as—

(I) its members only persons who comprise the membership of the risk retention group; and

(II) its owners only persons who comprise the membership of the risk retention group and who are provided insurance by such group;

(F) whose members are engaged in businesses or activities similar or related with respect to the liability to which such members are exposed by virtue of any related, similar, 
or common business, trade, product, services, premises, or operations;

(G) whose activities do not include the provision of insurance other than—

(i) liability insurance for assuming and spreading all or any portion of the similar or related liability exposure of its group members; and

(ii) reinsurance with respect to the similar or related liability exposure of any other risk retention group (or any member of such other group) which is engaged in businesses 
or activities so that such group (or member) meets the requirement described in subparagraph (F) for membership in the risk retention group which provides such 
reinsurance; and

(H) the name of which includes the phrase "Risk Retention Group".



Chapter 87 (cont’d)

For purposes of the LRRA “liability” means “legal liability for damages (including costs of defense, legal costs and fees, and other claims
expenses) because of injuries to other persons, damage to their property, or other damage or loss to such other persons resulting from or
arising out of . . . any business . . . trade, product, services . . . premises, or operations, or . . . any activity of any State or local government, or
any agency or political subdivision thereof.” 15 U.S.C. § 3901(a)(2)

Risk Retention Groups:

• Are owned by their members (“member-insureds”).

• Are subject to some, but not all, of the provisions of Title 38, including laws governing financial reporting, RBC and investments. 

• Use generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, as opposed to statutory accounting principles, or (SAP).  The latter is more conservative and is 
used by “traditional” insurers

• In South Carolina, they are all licensed as captive insurance companies

• Policies issued by RRGs are NOT protected by guaranty association coverage S.C. Code Ann. § 38-87-50

State insurance departments’ financial analysis and examination of RRGs is reviewed by the NAIC for the purposes of accreditation



South Carolina is also recognized as a leading onshore 
domicile for captive insurance companies. Another key 
challenge for this division involves growing the captive 
industry while maintaining our stellar reputation as a 
domicile of choice for operating companies that 
conduct business on a national or global scale, and 
ensuring these entities are appropriately regulated for 
solvency. We routinely exhibit at industry conferences, 
partner with service providers based in South Carolina 
to license new companies, work to remain competitive 
with other states, and offer significant value to captive 
owners so that they continue to make a material 
economic impact in this State.

CAPTIVES



Chapter 90 of Title 38

Captive Insurance Companies

(Regulation 69-60)

The Department regulates and promotes the captive insurance industry in South Carolina through its Captives Division, which is overseen by the
Deputy Director, Financial Regulation and Solvency

What is a captive insurance company?

• A captive is a wholly owned subsidiary created to provide insurance to its non-insurance parent company (or companies). Captives are essentially
a form of self-insurance in which the insurer is owned by the insured and their day-to-day operations are normally handled by profession captive
managers. The Department maintains a list of approved captive managers on its website.

• Captives can help meet the unique risk-management needs of the owners or members and may provide tax advantages.

• The competition among captive domiciles is quite competitive: more than 70 jurisdictions have some form of captive legislation. Bermuda is the
largest single jurisdiction in terms of number of captives and Vermont, which was a pioneer in the captive industry, is the largest United States
domicile. South Carolina remains competitive in sheer numbers; however, our focus in on licensing high-quality captive insurers.



Types of Captives

Pure Captive: Insures the risks of its parent and affiliated companies or controlled unaffiliated business.

Association Captive: Any company that insures risks of the member organizations of the association, and their affiliated companies

Branch Captive: An alien captive insurance company licensed by the Director to transact the business of insurance in this State through a business unit
with a principal place of business in this State.

Industrial Insured Captive: A company that insures risks of the industrial insureds that comprise the industrial insured group and their affiliated
companies. An “industrial insured” means an insured that procures insurance by use of the services of a full-time employee acting as a risk manager or
insurance manager or utilizing the services of a regularly and continuously qualified insurance consultant, that has aggregate annual premiums for
insurance on all risks total at least twenty-five thousand dollars; and that has at least twenty-five full-time employees.

Sponsored Captive: A captive insurance company in which the minimum capital and surplus required by applicable law is provided by one or more
sponsors; that is formed or licensed under Chapter 90, segregates liability through one or more protected cells; and insures the risks of participants
through participant contracts.

Protected Cell – A “protected cell” is an identified pool of assets and liabilities of a sponsored captive insurance company for one or more participants that
is segregated and insulated from the remainder of the sponsored captive insurance company's assets and liabilities as set forth in this chapter. A protected
cell may be unincorporated or incorporated.

Risk Retention Groups: Captive insurer organized under the Liability Risk Retention Act, 15 U.S.C. §§3901 et seq.

Special Purpose Captive Insurance Company: One that is formed or licensed under South Carolina law but that does not meet the definition of any
other type of captive insurance company defined in the Code



S.C. Act No. 62 of 2025

Amendments to Chapter 90

Highlights:

• Creates more flexible board meeting requirements.

• Grants greater discretion to the Director relating to capitalization requirements.

• Modifies reporting deadline provisions.

• Allows sponsored captive insurance companies to file single actuarial opinion.

Makes the examination of some captive insurance companies optional:

• Formerly, risk retention groups or industrial insured captive insurance companies were to be examined at least once every five years, and “whenever
the director determines it to be prudent,” while captive insurance companies that were not a risk retention group or industrial insured captive insurance
company were to be examined three years following the date of licensure and at the discretion of the director thereafter.

• Now, although the requirements for RRGs and industrial insured captives are the same, any captive that is not a risk retention group or industrial
insured captive insurance company may be examined at the discretion of the Director.

• Simplifies tax payment provision for sponsored captive insurance companies.

The Department has a new Captives Director, Andrew Noga, who started on April 2, 2025. Reporting to the Deputy Director, Financial Regulation & Solvency,
the Captive Director heads the Captives Division and is located in the Charleston Office. This places him in close proximity to captive managers and other
providers of services to the South Carolina captives industry. A retired general counsel for an insurance company, Mr. Noga brings a wealth of experience and
a broad knowledge of insurance and risk transfer and first-hand experience with captives.



Pharmacy Benefits 
Managers and 
Pharmacy Services 
Administrative 
Organizations



A “Simplified” Illustration of the 
Pharmaceutical Distribution 

Chain

Source: NAIC White Paper



Act No. 30 of 2023

Amends Chapter 71 of Title 38

Codified in Articles 18, 21 and 23 of Chapter 71

Highlights:

• Expanded the rights of pharmacy providers during an audit. 

• Allows pharmacists 30 days to submit records in response to an audit request, with a possible 30-day 
extension. 

• Pharmacists are entitled to have the audit limited to claims identified by prescription number or range of 
prescription numbers if the audit is conducted for an identified problem. 

• Audits for reasons other than an identified problem are limited to 100 selected prescriptions per pharmacy 
benefit manager. 

• Pharmacists also have the right to an external review, requested through the SCDOI, following an audit or for 
any denied appeals of recoupments.



Regulation of Pharmacy Benefits Managers

and Pharmacy Services Administrative Organizations

• The Department’s Office of PBM Oversight & Specialty Licensing licenses and regulates Pharmacy Benefit
Managers (PBMs) and Pharmacy Services Administrative Organizations (PSAOs).

• The Department must conduct examinations of PBMs and PSAOs to ensure compliance with the law at least
once every five years. Currently, there are five examinations underway (Four PBMs and one PSAO).

• Act No. 30 also charged the Department with promulgating regulations to establish an external review process 
to facilitate the review of a pharmacy provider’s denied internal appeal or audit finding. This resulted in 
amendments to Regulation 69-77.



Summary of 2024 Amendments to Regulation 69-77

• Implements that portion of Act No. 30 of 2023 providing for external review of certain Pharmacy
Benefits Manager (PBM) decisions and PBM operations

• Effective as of May 24, 2024

• Establishes procedures for the approval of independent review organizations (IROs) and the initiation
and conduct of PBM-related external reviews

• Prescribes certain recordkeeping and reporting requirements for IROs conducting those reviews

• Provides for regular, periodic examinations of PBMs

• Effectuates other changes regarding the regulation of PBMs

Note: IROs that were already approved by the Department to conduct external reviews in South Carolina
were required to amend their existing application to receive approval to conduct PBM external reviews
under Regulation 69-77.



Beginning January 1, 2024, the Department Began Licensing of 

Pharmacy Services Administrative Organizations Operating in this State

Regulation 69-78, which took effect on May 24, 2024, was added to provide licensing, reporting and activity standards
for PSAOs.

• Describes the requirements for initial licensure and annual license renewal for PSAOs

• Provides for review of contracts to ensure they do not contain prohibited language and prohibited waivers

• Provides for examination of PSAOs for compliance with the requirements of S.C. Act No. 30 of 2023, as amended
(“the Act”) and other applicable South Carolina law

• Prescribes record-keeping requirements of PSAOs

• Sets confidentiality requirements

• Provides for penalties for violations of the regulation



A Word About Preemption

• Federal preemption is a legal doctrine that allows a higher level of government to limit or even
eliminate the power of a lower level of government to regulate a specific issue. If a state law conflicts
with a federal law, under the Supremacy Clause, the federal law controls. Preemption may be
expressed (explicit preemptive language in the federal statute) or implied.

• The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) can impose a substantial limitation on
state regulation of PBMs and PSAOs.

• ERISA supersedes any and all State laws insofar as they relate to any employee benefit plan covered
by ERISA. A state law “relates to” an ERISA plan if that law has (1) a “connection with” or (2) a
“reference to” an ERISA plan.



Jurisdiction and Preemption at a Glance 
State vs. Federal 

 

McCarran-Ferguson 
Act  

ERISA 
of 1974  

↓ ↓ 
Business of Insurance  Employee Benefit Plan  

↓ ↓ 
Health Insurance/  
Pharm. Benefits* 

Employer Funded 
Health Plan/Pharm. 

Benefits 
↓ ↓ 

State Federal 
↓ ↓ 

SCDOI USDOL 
 

*Unless the state law “relates to” any employee benefit plan. A state law relates to an ERISA plan if the 
law has (1) a connection with or (2) a reference to an ERISA plan. 



In Rutledge v. Pharm. Care Mgmt. Ass'n, 592 U.S. 80 (2020) the Pharmacy
Care Management Association challenged an Arkansas law requiring PBMs
to reimburse pharmacies at a rate equal to or greater than the pharmacies’
acquisition costs, arguing that the law was preempted by ERISA. The U.S.
Supreme Court held that states may regulate PBMs (although the extent
remains disputed) and may regulate the price at which PBMs must reimburse
pharmacies.

But . . . 



. . . in Pharm. Care Mgmt. Ass'n v. Mulready, 78 F.4th 1183 (10th Cir. 2023), the U.S. Court of
Appeals held that an Oklahoma law that prescribed certain geographic criteria for pharmacy
networks, prohibited restrictions on an individual’s choice of in-network provider and on
participation by providers in a pharmacy network and also limited the ability of PBMs to place
certain restrictions in their contracts regarding pharmacists on probation, struck “at the heart
of network and benefit design,” which is “a central matter of [ERISA] plan administration.” The
Court of Appeals also held that the law forced ERISA plans to adopt a particular scheme of
substantive coverage and was thus preempted by ERISA.

So, the extent to which states may regulate PBMs is still uncertain and the subject of ongoing
litigation. (The Mulready case is pending in the U.S. Supreme Court)



Specialty Licensing

The Office of PBMs and Specialty Licensing also licenses and regulates:

Insurance Premium Service Companies - Chapter 39 of Title 38

Third Party Administrators (“Administrators of Insurance Benefit Plans”) -
Chapter 51 of Title 38

Service Contract Providers - Chapter 78 of Title 38



Specialty Licensing

Potential Items for Legislative Action

Third Party Administrators, Chapter 51: Update chapter to enact provisions from NAIC model (non-mandatory for
accreditation purposes).

Service Contract Providers, Chapter 78: This chapter needs some technical updates; e.g., (1) add renewal applications and
any documents the Director may require in addition to the annual fee; (2) add prohibition on certain contract language, such as
using the term “warranty” -- a service contract is not a warranty; (3) eliminate cash deposits because SCDOI cannot adequately
safeguard cash deposits, and define funded reserve account (type of liquid accounts that qualify); (4) add provisions like those
found in 38-78-40(B) and 38-78-55 to 38-78-50 as requirements in the service agreement with consumers; (5) add a provision
that the Director will not accept a licensee surrender until it provides satisfactory evidence that all obligations to contract holders
have been met.

Premium Service Companies, Chapter 39: Update chapter to better address license renewal.



Maintaining an Experienced and Well-Trained Staff

 Retirement – generational change as “Baby Boomers” (1945-1964) continue to leave 
workforce, others reach retirement age, others reach years of service requirement for SRS

 Competition from Private Sector – salary competition, recruitment and retention
 Knowledge transfer
 Growing as a team
 Training

Private Equity

 PE firms/holding companies acquiring life insurers in large numbers
 Annuities
 Large amounts of capital
 Offshoring, riskier investments, investment management fees 

Challenges/Successes/Opportunities



FRAUD 
DIVISION

Joshua R.  Underwood, Special  Assistant Attorney General
Director, Insurance Fraud Division

The Insurance Fraud Division works to raise 
consumer awareness of the various forms of 
insurance fraud and investigates and prosecutes 
perpetrators of insurance fraud in South Carolina.



Joshua Underwood

Fraud Division Director

Attorney V

61109490- AE50

Soraya Purvis

Paralegal

61109821- AE03

Geraldine Pleasant

Paralegal

61109822- AE03

Shayna Thompson
Program Coordinator I

61109820- AH35

Moultrie Roberts

Attorney IV

61109491-AE40

Lawrence Wedekind
Attorney III

61109817- AE30

Jason Allen
Attorney III

61109818- AE30

Vacant
Attorney III

61109819- AE20

South Carolina Department of Insurance 

Fraud Division



CURRENT INSURANCE FRAUD 
DIVISION STAFF (as of June 19, 2025)
1 Director (Attorney V): Joshua Underwood
Attorney IV: Moultrie Roberts
Attorney III: Lawrence Wedekind
Attorney III: Jason Allen
Attorney III: Vacant (Expect position to be filled by August 4, 2025)
Program Coordinator: Shayna Thompson
Paralegal: Geraldine Pleasant
Paralegal: Soraya Purvis
*2 Part-time/Temporary Law Clerks began work in mid-June 2025



Director of the Insurance Fraud 
Division

•Responsible for the hiring and supervision of all Insurance Fraud Division staff

•Liaison to the Attorney General’s Office

•Develops internal procedures and policies

•Represents the Division at outreach events
•Collaborates with outside agencies and other stakeholders to detect, 
mitigate, and prevent insurance fraud

•Manages an individual case load

•Assists subordinate attorneys with difficult or complex cases and 
decisions

•Prepares Division’s Annual Report



Insurance Fraud Coordinator
•Processes all incoming fraud complaints

•Primary employee to answer all incoming calls and emails to the Ins. 
Fraud Division

•Sends requests for information (RFI) to insurance carriers 

•Processes information received for review by prosecutor

•Performs administrative duties for the Ins. Fraud Division 

•Assists with outreach events and activities

•Compiles data for reporting

•Assists the Division Director with drafting and publishing the Insurance 
Fraud Division’s Annual Reports 



Paralegals

•Assembles and organizes prosecution case files

•Redacts case files and completes the criminal discovery process

•Assists with preparing and filing motions with the appropriate courts

•Assists with case status updates for case management
•Administratively closes files

•Assist sprogram coordinator with answering the Insurance Fraud 
Hotline and joint email account

•Assists with administrative duties

•Other duties as needed



Attorney IV
•Assists with the supervision of the Insurance Fraud Division

•Primarily as an intermediate supervisor for the remaining attorneys in 
the Division

•Conducts periodic case reviews with other attorneys in the Division

•Reviews indictments before submission to Division Director and 
then to the AG

•Handles an individual caseload
Conducts prosecutorial reviews of complaints and additional 
information 

Pursues civil fines when appropriate
Refers matters to SLED
Advises SLED Agents
Prosecutes criminal cases of insurance fraud and related crimes



Attorney III
•Conducts prosecutorial reviews of complaints and additional information 

•Pursues civil fines when appropriate

•Refers matters to SLED

•Advises SLED Agents

•Prosecutes criminal cases of insurance fraud and related crimes

•*Jason Allen has taken on additional duties related to developing and using technology 
to improve workflow and case management



History of the Insurance Fraud Division
• The Insurance Fraud Division was first created by the Legislature in 1994 with the passage of the Omnibus 

Insurance Fraud and Reporting Immunity Act.

• This Act created the Division within the Office of the Attorney General to prosecute insurance fraud throughout 
the State. The Act further required the South Carolina Law Enforcement Division (SLED) to investigate 
allegations of insurance fraud.

• In 2021, the Office of the Attorney General, SLED, and the Department of Insurance executed a Memorandum of 
Understanding to relocate the Insurance Fraud Division to the Department of Insurance.

• Pursuant to this agreement, the Attorney General appoints certain attorneys, hired by the Department of 
Insurance, as Special Assistant Attorneys General to prosecute insurance fraud related crimes under the 
general supervision and control of the Attorney General.

• SLED continues to investigate insurance fraud as a partner with the Insurance Fraud Division.  The Department 
of Insurance employs and houses the staff of the Insurance Fraud Division.

• The Department of Insurance also provides office space and equipment for SLED’s insurance fraud investigators 
and their supervising lieutenant to facilitate the partnership between the investigators and the prosecutors.



Step 13Step 12Step  11Step  10

Step 9 Step 8 Step 7 Step 6

Step 5Step 4Step 2Step 1

PROCESS FOR INVESTIGATION AND PROSECUTION OF 
INSURANCE FRAUD

DOI prosecutors triaged 4947 complaints 
in 2024. DOI had 3 attorneys in the Fraud  
Division after a vacancy.  Approx. 1600 per 
attorney

250 of the 4947 cases were 
referred to SLED for investigation

174 Target letters sent 
resulting in 45 MOU/civil fines

SLED has 7 investigators to assign 
cases with a caseload of about 40 
cases .  A caseload of 25 is optimal.

Step 3

672 RFIs in 
2024

71 SLED Arrests in 2024



INVESTIGATING INSURANCE FRAUD

2022
62 new Insurance Fraud cases assigned
72 old Insurance Fraud cases closed
53 arrests for Insurance Fraud related offenses

2023
SLED had 5 Special Agents designated to investigate Insurance 
Fraud (1 was a new hire)
157 cases opened
22 old cases closed

2024
SLED had 5 Special Agents designated to investigate Insurance 
Fraud for most of the year.
152 new Insurance Fraud cases opened
102 old cases closed
71 suspects arrested on 152 warrants



INSURANCE FRAUD IS ON THE RISE



2024 Annual Report Summary 
Total Complaints



2024 Annual Report Summary
Disposition of Cases



Fines and Restitution in 2024



2024 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED BY TYPE OF FRAUD

The fraud complaints received during 2024 by the Insurance 
Fraud Division consisted of the 

following types of fraud:



Complaints by County



Common Automobile Fraud Schemes

• STAGED ACCIDENTS
• Intentional Collisions

• All-in vs. Stranger Danger
• Conspirators often claim not to know 

each other – red flag

• Manufactured Damage

• Phantom Collisions

• Often involves ring activity

• Uhauls, Rentals, Uber, Lyft, etc.

• State v. Cornelius Jones

• Targeted elderly victims in parking lots.  
As they were backing out of parking 
spaces, he’d drive or walk into their car 
and then claim injuries.

• Pled Guilty to Presenting False Claims 
for Payment 

• Sentenced to 18 months in prison 
followed by probation and                           
$15,983 in restitution          



Common Automobile Fraud Schemes

• JUMP-INS
• An actual vehicle collision occurs

• Someone or a group of people claim 
injuries as a result, even though they 
weren’t in the car.

• Often includes questionable medical 
treatment

• Many times, the medical bills submitted 
are altered or complete forgeries

• Often involves ring activity

• Sometimes it is a crime of opportunity

• State v. Quanshae Abram & Quatell
McDaniel-Abrams

• Parking-lot dispute began investigation
• Abram told police that dispute involved 

the division of proceeds from ins. fraud
• Defendants falsely claimed to be in a 

total of 3 incidents 
• Abram even submitted medical bills on 

behalf of a child who was not in the car
• Both pled guilty to Presenting False 

Claims for Payment  
• Sentenced to probation and to                        

pay restitution of $13,289 and          
$5,902, respectively



Common Automobile Fraud Schemes
• COVERAGE FRAUD

• Providing false info to make a non-
covered loss appear as if it is a 
covered loss

• Common Example: Date of Loss
• DUPLICATE DAMAGE

• Presenting pre-existing damage as 
if it is a new loss

• Sometimes involves coverage fraud 
• Sometimes it’s a repeat scam to 

keep getting paid
• Sometimes combined with staged 

or manufactured damage

• State v. Donovan Brantley
• Repeatedly made claims for the 

same damage on the same vehicle 
without ever conducting any repairs

• Continued to make claims after no 
longer owning or possessing the car

• Pled Guilty, as a Youthful Offender, 
to Presenting False Claims for 
Payment.

• Sentenced to probation and 
$22,119 in restitution 



Common Fraud Schemes – False Thefts

Often involves 
false police 

reports

Inflated theft
• Some actual 

items/some 
phantoms

Inflated values

Forged Receipts 
are                         

common

• Items NOT stolen
• Hidden during claim
• Sold before claim

• Vehicles are common, especially 
when underwater or damaged

• Often associated with arson

• Items not actually owned
• Completely false theft



Common Premium Fraud Schemes
• PREMIUM FRAUD 

• Auto: Garage Location, Unlisted 
Drivers, Mileage, Condition of 
Vehicle/Title

• Prior Medical Conditions
• Loss History
• Nature of work or number of 

employees (Ghost Policies)
• Stolen/Synthetic Identity – Relates 

to Coverage Fraud too
• Sometimes it is hard to establish a 

value - depends on underwriting

State v. Richard Coker
• Operated a tree-cutting service
• Only insured as a landscaping 

business
• The misrepresentation allowed 

him to avoid almost $30,000 in 
WC premiums.

• Pled guilty. Sentenced to          
time-served after paying               
$28,708 in restitution.



Common Agent Fraud Schemes

COMMISSION CHURNING
• Identity Theft
• Premium Kiting 
• Fake Policies
• Unauthorized Policy changes, 

“upgrades,” and additions
• Upstream Effects
• ACA 

MARKETPLACE/ENROLLMENT 
FRAUD

• Relatively new problem which seems 
to be tapering off

• State v. David Fowler
• Fowler was an insurance 

producer who wrote fictitious 
policies

• Accepted at least $49,000 in 
“premium payments”

• Paid restitution of  $49,000 before 
being  sentenced to probation



Common WC & Disability Fraud Schemes

• Fake Injury
• Malingering
• Prior Injury
• Working Under the Table
• False & Inflated Medical Bills or 

Records
• Forged Certificate Cases

• Usually contractors forge these to 
satisfy WC & Liability requirements

• Agents may furnish these so that they 
can pocket the premiums 



Contractor Fraud Schemes

Common in the 
Roofing, 

Remediation, 
and Tree Services

Premium Fraud

Inflated bills 
(to “cover the 
deductible”)

Manufactured 
damage

Bills for work not 
performed

• Can involve public adjusters or 
people acting as unlicensed 
public adjusters

• Obtaining by False Pretense 
Scams

• Often targeting vulnerable                
adults or disaster victims



Important Points From The 2024 
Annual Report 

• This past year revealed that insurance fraud continues to persist and grow in South Carolina. In 2024, the 
Insurance Fraud Division received a combined total of 4,947 complaints of suspected insurance fraud, a 
significant increase from the previous year. This represents the largest number of insurance fraud complaints 
ever received in South Carolina in a single calendar year.

• A recent study conducted by the Colorado State University Global White Collar Task Force, in partnership 
with the Coalition Against Insurance Fraud, estimates that the annual cost of insurance fraud in the U.S. is 
approximately 308 billion dollars. When it is broken down per capita, South Carolina’s share of that cost is 
4.9 billion dollars.

• Despite South Carolina ranking 23rd in population, NICB reported in 2023 that we ranked 16th in the country 
for questionable insurance claims. More importantly, South Carolina ranked 13th in questionable vehicle-
related insurance claims.



OUTREACH, EDUCATION, AND 
MITIGATION

Interagency Cooperation and Roundtables

Insurance Fraud Forums

Law Enforcement Training w/ National Insurance 
Crime Bureau (NICB)

Speaking Engagements w/industry and law 
enforcement groups

Website Improvements

Partnership with SCDOI – Office of Consumer 
Services

Awareness Events
Hurricane Claim Villages



INSURANCE FRAUD ROUNDTABLE

• Inspired by observing several other agency 
presentations to the Legislative Oversight 
Committee’s Insurance Fraud Ad Hoc Committee

• Held December 2024 with participation from 
SCDOI, SLED, DDSN, SCAG, SAF, WCC, Dept. of 
Consumer Affairs

• Discussion of how the different agencies have 
overlapping interests and how we can improve 
future collaboration

• All present agreed to hold another meeting with 
several additional agencies to be invited for 
participation



INSURANCE FRAUD FORUMS
Spring 2025

• 3 in-person forums since 2024
• Opportunity for collaboration 

between SCDOI, SLED, and 
investigators for the insurance 
industry.

• Open discussion of fraud 
trends, unit updates, and ways 
for all stakeholders to improve 

• A virtual forum is being planned 
for Summer 2025



Insurance Fraud 
Awareness 
Brochure 

This 2-sided brochure and the 
following 2-sided, trifold 
brochure are handed out at 
SCDOI Awareness and 
Disaster Relief Events.



Home Repair Scam Brochure – Side 1



Home Repair Scam Brochure – Side 2



Insurance Fraud Prevention 
Strategies

Prevention and awareness are  key components of the fight against insurance 
fraud.

Effective prevention strategies will help maintain a competitive and  stable 
insurance market for insurance consumers.

Over the next fiscal year, the Department will enhance its initiatives involving:
Consumer Education: Raising awareness among policyholders about the  
various forms of insurance fraud and the consequences.
The Department will conduct a public awareness campaign that

Educates consumers on the types of insurance fraud;
Teaches consumers how to spot insurance fraud; and
The impact of insurance fraud on insurance premiums and        
coverage availability.

Partner with other state agencies such as the Department of Consumer 
Affairs, the South Carolina Department of  Motor Vehicles, Office of Aging, etc. 
to share information with their stakeholders about fraud education and best 
practices for fraud prevention.



INSURANCE FRAUD STAFFING 
CHALLENGES

Insurance Fraud Division in 2009
• 1 Director
• 4 Attorneys
• 3 AG Support Staff
• 1 SLED Supervisor
• 4 SLED Agents
• 1 Admin for SLED

834 Complaints

Insurance Fraud Division in 2024
• 1 Director
• 4 Attorneys
• 3 DOI Support Staff
• 1 SLED Supervisor
• 5 SLED Agents
• No Admin for SLED 

4,947 Complaints



vs.

• POPULATION: 5 MILLION PEOPLE
• INVESTIGATING FRAUD: 7 AGENTS (5 in 2024)
• 4,947 Complaints received in 2024
• 152 SLED cases opened in 2024
• 71 Arrests in 2024

• POPULATION: 10 MILLION PEOPLE
• INVESTIGATING FRAUD: 51 AGENTS
• 6,992 Complaints received in 2024
• 2,162 Cases opened in 2024
• 408 Arrests in 2024

• POPULATION: 8 MILLION PEOPLE
• INVESTIGATING FRAUD: 28 AGENTS
• 1,416 Cases received in 2023
• 380 Investigations initiated in 2023
• 52 Arrests in 2023

INSURANCE FRAUD STAFFING COMPARISONS WITH OTHER 
SOUTHEASTERN STATES

STAFFING MAKES A DIFFERENCE IN THE FIGHT AGAINST FRAUD



PERSONNEL NEEDED TO EFFECTIVELY FIGHT INSURANCE 
FRAUD IN SOUTH CAROLINA

SCDOI – INSURANCE FRAUD 
DIVISION

• 1 Director
• 9-12 Prosecutors
• 3-4 Legal Support Staff

• paralegals, legal assistant

• 4 Program Staff including:
• a data analyst
• education/outreach coordinator
• forensic investigator

SLED – INSURANCE FRAUD UNIT

• 1 Captain
• 3 Lieutenants
• 21-25 Special Agents
• 1-2 Admin/Program Coordinators 



LEGISLATIVE 
SOLUTIONS
• Update the Omnibus Insurance Fraud 

and Reporting Immunity Act to codify 
the intent of the Insurance Fraud 
Division MOU

• Permanent funding and creation of 
needed FTE positions for SLED and 
SCDOI

• New insurance fraud related statutes 
and investigative authority



THE MOU IS A 
TEMPORARY SOLUTION
• Codification of the MOU to make 

permanent the current location of the 
Insurance Fraud Division is our 
utmost legislative priority

• 90 DAYS NOTICE BY ANY OF THE 3 
AGENCIES CAN END THE 
ARRANGEMENT

• The MOU arrangement is subject to 
non-recurring funding



ADDITIONAL STAFF 
FOR DOI & SLED
• Additional staff for SLED and DOI 

are needed to:
• Increase capacity for proactive vs. 

reactive investigations
• Increase public awareness about 

insurance fraud
• Increase efforts for deterrence
• Maximize prosecution results



ADDITIONAL 
STATUTORY TOOLS
• New criminal offense for staging 

vehicle collisions
• Civil forfeitures
• State Grand Jury jurisdiction
• Recidivism Statute



ADDITIONAL 
STATUTORY TOOLS
• Proposed Section 38-55-171 to create 

new felony offenses of “Staging a Motor 
Vehicle Collision” and “Aggravated 
Staging a Motor Vehicle Collision”

• New York, Louisiana, Georgia, Colorado, 
and California have all passed statutes 
making it a crime to stage an automobile 
accident for insurance fraud 



ADDITIONAL 
STATUTORY TOOLS
• Proposed Section 38-55-173 

• This proposed statute would authorize and 
create procedures for the confiscation and 
forfeiture of property used to commit or 
facilitate the commission of violations of 
Sections 38-55-170; 38-55-540, and the 
proposed Section 38-55-171.

• The risk of property confiscation will serve as 
a deterrent and make future fraud attempts 
more difficult.



ADDITIONAL STATUTORY TOOLS

• Grant of State Grand Jury subject matter jurisdiction for insurance fraud 
by amending Section 14-7-1630(A) to include:

“(14) a crime involving insurance fraud including, but not limited 
to, a violation of the statutes under the South Carolina Omnibus 
Insurance Fraud and Reporting Immunity Act or a crime arising out of or 
in connection with insurance fraud.”



ADDITIONAL 
STATUTORY TOOLS

• Amend Section 17-25-45(B)(2)(b) to 
define the following offenses as 
“Serious” Offenses:

• Presenting False Claims for 
Payment, Section 38-55-170(1)

• Making False Statement or 
Misrepresentation, Sections 38-
55-540(3) - 540(5)

• This change will deter recidivism and 
allow for appropriate punishment for 
defendants who continually commit 
higher dollar-value levels of 
insurance fraud



CONSUMER  
& EXTERNAL 
AFFAIRS

Diane Cooper,  Deputy Director,  Consumer & External Affairs



CONSUMER  
& EXTERNAL 
AFFAIRS

Diane Cooper,  Deputy Director,  Consumer & External Affairs



South Carolina Department of Insurance 
Division of Consumer and External Affairs

Diane Cooper- NG
Consumer and External 

Affairs/Deputy 
60026046-UA03

Andrea Bourgoin
Supv. Individual 

Licensing  Services
Program Manager I

6002540-AH45

Jacqueline McDaniel
Insurance Analyst I 

60025749-AP01

Vacant 7.18.24
Insurance Analyst I

60025838-AP01

Emily Knight
Admin. Coord II 
60025739-AH15

Tammy Clem
Administrative Coord

60025832-AH10

Joy (Smith) 
Harrison

Program Coordinator II
60025841-AH 40

Christina Goode
Insurance Analyst I
60025827 –AP01

Kayla Baker 
Consumer Services Mgr

Program Manager I
60025839-AH45

Vacant
OCS -INTERN

61155171 (UZ01)

Stacey Campbell
CS Switchboard
Admin. Spec. II
60025831-AA50

James Winders
Supervising Analyst
Insurance Analyst III

60025730-AP05

Amanda Smiley
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60026032-AP03

Wendy Cox
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60025825-AP03

Savannah Graham
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60025929-AP03

Lindsay Chaffin
Supervising Analyst
Insurance Analyst III

60025836-AP05

Heather 
Kamphaus

Prog Coord. I
60025938-AH35

Insurance Reg Analyst
Insurance Analyst II

60025835-AP03

Heather Pressley
Insurance Analyst II

60026035-AH30

Rosa Rivers
Insurance Analyst III

61155969-AP05/UZ01

Virginia McLeod
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst III
61155469-AP05 (UZ01)

Jasmine Booth
OCS -INTERN

61155367 (UZ01)

Kamry Bell
Communications and 

Outreach Coord.
Public Information Coord II 

60025843-BC34



South Carolina Department of Insurance 
Division of Consumer and External Affairs

Diane Cooper- NG
Consumer and External 

Affairs/Deputy 
60026046-UA03

Andrea Bourgoin
Supv. Individual 

Licensing  Services
Program Manager I

6002540-AH45

Jacqueline McDaniel
Insurance Analyst I 

60025749-AP01

Vacant 7.18.24
Insurance Analyst I

60025838-AP01

Emily Knight
Admin. Coord II 
60025739-AH15

Tammy Clem
Administrative Coord

60025832-AH10

Joy (Smith) 
Harrison

Program Coordinator II
60025841-AH 40

Christina Goode
Insurance Analyst I
60025827 –AP01

Kayla Baker 
Consumer Services Mgr

Program Manager I
60025839-AH45

Vacant
OCS -INTERN

61155171 (UZ01)

Stacey Campbell
CS Switchboard
Admin. Spec. II
60025831-AA50

James Winders
Supervising Analyst
Insurance Analyst III

60025730-AP05

Amanda Smiley
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60026032-AP03

Wendy Cox
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60025825-AP03

Savannah Graham
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60025929-AP03

Lindsay Chaffin
Supervising Analyst
Insurance Analyst III

60025836-AP05

Heather 
Kamphaus

Prog Coord. I
60025938-AH35

Insurance Reg Analyst
Insurance Analyst II

60025835-AP03

Heather Pressley
Insurance Analyst II

60026035-AH30

Rosa Rivers
Insurance Analyst III

61155969-AP05/UZ01

Virginia McLeod
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst III
61155469-AP05 (UZ01)

Jasmine Booth
OCS -INTERN

61155367 (UZ01)

Kamry Bell
Communications and 

Outreach Coord.
Public Information Coord II 

60025843-BC34



Office of Consumer Services
The Office of Consumer Services (OCS) provides 
assistance to consumers on a wide range of insurance 
claim and policy issues. The Consumer Services staff 
responds to consumer needs relating to auto, health, 
homeowners, and life insurance; provides consumers 
with market assistance by helping to identify hard-to-
place insurance coverage within the insurance market; 
and assists consumers following a catastrophic event.



Consumer Services Full-Time Staffing
Program 

Manager I

Insurance 
Analyst III

Insurance 
Analyst II

Program 
Coordinator I

Responsible for overseeing the daily operations of the OCS.  Trains and 
onboards new staff, motivates team and monitors industry trends, 
approves legal/enforcement referrals while handling small caseload.1

2

1

Serve as supervising analysts and subject matter experts for other 
OCS staff.  Handle caseload while supervising, auditing and 
managing small staff.

Responsible for front-line consumer assistance.  Handle 
telephone and in-person inquiries from consumers, investigate 
complaints against carriers & referrals to legal when further 
investigation or enforcement action is warranted.  

Responsible for OCS switchboard and triage of phone calls.  
Handles assignment of external reviews and home warranty 
complaints. 

2 Vacancies - Insurance Analyst II’s due to internal promotions

Responsible for entry of consumer complaint data into State 
Based System, sends complaint notification to carriers & assigns 
complaint to appropriate analyst.  Runs various reports. 

Administrative 
Specialist I1



Consumer Services Supplemental 
Staffing

Part-time 
Analysts

Interns

Retirees of the OCS who help with heavy call volume hours and handle a 
small caseload of complaints as needed. 2

2
Interns assist with outreach efforts, scheduling venues and 
prepping supplies as well as with administrative functions within 
the office of consumer services (switchboard, scanning, etc.)

1 intern vacancy



Consumer Assistance 
Each day, we assist consumers that write, 
call, or visit our office. 

We help consumers with coverage 
questions, claim disputes, and requests for 
market assistance.

Many consumer concerns are resolved 
without filing a formal complaint. 

Yearly Totals 

92242022

110872023

130222024



Consumer Complaints
One of the primary missions of the South Carolina Department of Insurance is to serve and protect 
insurance consumers. To fulfill that mission, the South Carolina Department of Insurance provides the 
valuable service of working with consumers and insurers to address consumer complaints. Complaints 
provide a great deal of information about the industry, individual insurers, and real-time consumer 
concerns, including emerging issues in the marketplace. The complaints received by the Department are 
analyzed, recorded, and tracked. 

Amount 
Recovered 

Total 
Complaints

Year

$ 9,995,92927912022

$12,007,79235782023

$ 8,313,81834672024



Consumer Complaints

Number of    
Complaints

VS
Total 

Population

Complaints

Total Population



Complaint 
Form



Consumer Complaint Process



Notification 
Letter



Complaint 
Checklist



Consumer Complaint Process

If violation of statute or pattern is discovered, a market conduct 
referral is made for further investigation and potential  
enforcement action.



Closing Correspondence with Consumer



Complaint Breakdown by Reason

Claim Handling

Underwriting

Marketing & Sales

Policyholder Service



Consumer Complaint Summary
Complaint Summaries can be found on our website: doi.sc.gov.



Consumer 
Complaint 
Summary
• The Consumer Complaint Summary is an 
annual report that provides a list of 
companies with more than $100,000 in 
written premium by line of business, the 
total number of complaints received by our 
Department, the number of confirmed 
complaints analyzed by our Department, the 
confirmed complaints as a percentage of 
total complaints, and the U.S. Market Share. 



Consumer Outreach 

We believe that getting out into the 
communities we serve helps build a 
stronger and more resilient South 
Carolina. 

We participate in many types of outreach 
opportunities: job fairs, school 
appearances, speaking engagements, 
hurricane expos and helping the 
community with recovery after a disaster 
strikes. 



Hurricane 
Preparedness 

We protect South Carolina consumers by providing 
them with resources that enable them to be 
prepared before a disaster strikes. 

We provide consumers with helpful resources 
through:

• Social Media
• SCDOI Website
• Collaborating with organizations like SCEMD and   

SC Department of Aging 
• Attending Hurricane Expos throughout SC 



Insurance Education 

The Department understands the 
importance of financial literacy. 

We have begun initiatives to introduce 
the concept of insurance to elementary, 
middle, and high school students. 

The Department also works with colleges 
and universities in South Carolina to 
provide insurance presentations to 
students and local community members. 



Hurricane Helene

Following Hurricane Helene’s impact on the upstate of South 
Carolina, the Department helped set up insurance villages. The 
Department set up booths alongside insurance carriers to 
answer consumers’ questions and distributed helpful 
information about the claims process. 

In addition, the insurance fraud unit was available to 
educate the public about insurance scams they 
should look out for following a catastrophic event .



2025 CONSUMER OUTREACH 
EVENTS

January 8- DOI Informational Meeting at Gill 
Creek Church- Richland 

March 5- NABIP SC Symposium- Richland

March 16- Saluda River Academy for the Arts-
Richland

April 2- Highway Safety Law Enforcement 
Awards Ceremony- Richland

April 4- Senior P.R.E.P- Lexington

April 5- Cheraw Spring Festival- Chesterfield

April 8- Newberry Senior Center Luncheon-
Newberry

April 12- Saluda County Health Fair- Saluda

April 16- Senior Circle- Marlboro 

May 1- Colleton Business Preparedness 
Workshop- Colleton 

May 12- Florence Rotary Club- Florence

May 15- Governor’s Coastal Tour- Charleston

May 20- Senior P.R.E.P- Cherokee

May 29- Senior. P.R.E.P- Darlington

May 31- Dorchester Hurricane Expo- Dorchester 



2025 CONSUMER OUTREACH 
EVENTS 

June 12- Edgefield Senior Center- Edgefield 

June 14 - Todd’s Hurricane Expo- Horry

June 21- Hilton Head Hurricane Expo- Beaufort

June 28- Charleston EMD Hurricane Expo-
Charleston

July 8- Kershaw County Library- Kershaw

September 4- Orangeburg-Calhoun Technical 
College- Orangeburg

Week of September 15 - Claflin University-
Orangeburg Additional events being scheduled 

for remainder of the year.



CONSUMER  
& EXTERNAL 
AFFAIRS

Diane Cooper,  Deputy Director,  Consumer & External Affairs



Office of Individual Licensing

This division licenses the following:
• Producers
• Brokers
• Agencies
• Adjusters
• Public Adjusters
• Portable Electronics 
• Self-Service Storage and Rental 

Car Companies
• Appraisers
• Bondsmen



South Carolina Department of Insurance 
Division of Consumer and External Affairs

Diane Cooper- NG
Consumer and External 

Affairs/Deputy 
60026046-UA03

Andrea Bourgoin
Supv. Individual 

Licensing  Services
Program Manager I

6002540-AH45

Jacqueline McDaniel
Insurance Analyst I 

60025749-AP01

Vacant 7.18.24
Insurance Analyst I

60025838-AP01

Emily Knight
Admin. Coord II 
60025739-AH15

Tammy Clem
Administrative Coord

60025832-AH10

Joy (Smith) 
Harrison

Program Coordinator II
60025841-AH 40

Christina Goode
Insurance Analyst I
60025827 –AP01

Kayla Baker 
Consumer Services Mgr

Program Manager I
60025839-AH45

Vacant
OCS -INTERN

61155171 (UZ01)

Stacey Campbell
CS Switchboard
Admin. Spec. II
60025831-AA50

James Winders
Supervising Analyst
Insurance Analyst III

60025730-AP05

Amanda Smiley
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60026032-AP03

Wendy Cox
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60025825-AP03

Savannah Graham
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60025929-AP03

Lindsay Chaffin
Supervising Analyst
Insurance Analyst III

60025836-AP05

Heather 
Kamphaus

Prog Coord. I
60025938-AH35

Insurance Reg Analyst
Insurance Analyst II

60025835-AP03

Heather Pressley
Insurance Analyst II

60026035-AH30

Rosa Rivers
Insurance Analyst III

61155969-AP05/UZ01

Virginia McLeod
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst III
61155469-AP05 (UZ01)

Jasmine Booth
OCS -INTERN

61155367 (UZ01)

Kamry Bell
Communications and 

Outreach Coord.
Public Information Coord II 

60025843-BC34



Individual Licensing Staffing
Program 

Manager I

Admin 
Coordinator II

Program 
Coordinator II

Admin 
Coordinator I

Directs, coordinates, and administers Individual Licensing and 
Continuing Education.  Applies knowledge of complex laws and 
regulations.  Represents the Department at speaking 
engagements and industry events.  

1

1

1

Acts as Assistant Manager of Individual Licensing and Continuing 
Education.  Oversees staff in Manager’s absence, manages the 
processing of fingerprints and 1033 applications, supervises the 
Admin Coordinator I.

Manages and oversees Bondsman Licensing.  Reviews complaints 
against bondsmen while applying complex knowledge of state 
laws and regulations.

Processes applications for licenses ensuring all licensing 
requirements are met and requests additional documentation as 
needed, ensuring all applications are responded to and approved 
within 1-3 business days.  

Fully Staffed – 0 Vacancies

Covers licensing switchboard, answers questions regarding 
licensing requirements and continuing education in accordance 
with state laws and regulations.  Manages responses for licensing 
chatbot, assigns daily pending to staff.  Reviews PICS from NIPR.

Insurance 
Analyst I2



LICENSING

Licenses and Renewals
The Individual Licensing Office processes new and renewal 

applications, collects the associated fees, and assists 
licensees with questions and concerns. 

Continuing Education
Many of the licenses that the Department processes have a 

continuing education requirement.  The Department approves 
these programs for accreditation and monitors its licensees 

to make sure this requirement is fulfilled. 



Total Individual Licensees As of 05/05/2025



Transaction 
Counts
April 2025 



Growth of New Licensees



CONSUMER  
& EXTERNAL 
AFFAIRS

Diane Cooper,  Deputy Director,  Consumer & External Affairs



Office of Public 
Information

Everything we do at the SC DOI revolves around the consumer



South Carolina Department of Insurance 
Division of Consumer and External Affairs

Diane Cooper- NG
Consumer and External 

Affairs/Deputy 
60026046-UA03

Andrea Bourgoin
Supv. Individual 

Licensing  Services
Program Manager I

6002540-AH45

Jacqueline McDaniel
Insurance Analyst I 

60025749-AP01

Vacant 7.18.24
Insurance Analyst I

60025838-AP01

Emily Knight
Admin. Coord II 
60025739-AH15

Tammy Clem
Administrative Coord

60025832-AH10

Joy (Smith) 
Harrison

Program Coordinator II
60025841-AH 40

Christina Goode
Insurance Analyst I
60025827 –AP01

Kayla Baker 
Consumer Services Mgr

Program Manager I
60025839-AH45

Vacant
OCS -INTERN

61155171 (UZ01)

Stacey Campbell
CS Switchboard
Admin. Spec. II
60025831-AA50

James Winders
Supervising Analyst
Insurance Analyst III

60025730-AP05

Amanda Smiley
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60026032-AP03

Wendy Cox
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60025825-AP03

Savannah Graham
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst II
60025929-AP03

Lindsay Chaffin
Supervising Analyst
Insurance Analyst III

60025836-AP05

Heather 
Kamphaus

Prog Coord. I
60025938-AH35

Insurance Reg Analyst
Insurance Analyst II

60025835-AP03

Heather Pressley
Insurance Analyst II

60026035-AH30

Rosa Rivers
Insurance Analyst III

61155969-AP05/UZ01

Virginia McLeod
Insurance Regulatory Analyst

Insurance Analyst III
61155469-AP05 (UZ01)

Jasmine Booth
OCS -INTERN

61155367 (UZ01)

Kamry Bell
Communications and 

Outreach Coord.
Public Information Coord II 

60025843-BC34



Consumer & 
External Affairs Administration

Fraud
Division

Legal, 
Legislative 
& External 
Affairs

Financial  
Regulation &  
Solvency

Consumer  
ServicesComms & 

Outreach

Individual 
Licensing

P&C
Analysts

LA&H Analysts

Actuarial Services

Prevention

Investigation
Prosecution Captives

Financial  
Analysis

Financial  
Examinations

Paralegal

Associate General 
Counsel

Market Regulation

Investigations

Market  & 
Actuarial
Services

Communications 
Strategy
Development



Communications 
Strategy

Everything we do at the SC DOI revolves around the consumer



Key 
Audiences

• Consumers in 46 Counties

• Legislators

• Local & National Media

• Licensees of the Department

• Associations & Trade Groups

• Educators at various levels & their students 

• Healthcare Providers

• Real Estate Agents & Brokers

• Other State Agencies

• State, City & Town Officials



Strategies
• Media Coverage of an issue or event

• Outreach through educators and schools

• Identifying influencers through community 
forums and organized events

• Leveraging the internet for outreach and 
education

• Partnering with local business, such as real 
estate or insurance agencies, to spread 
messaging

• Partnering with other state agencies for 
outreach events and remote office days



Staffing

Media & Public Relations

Community Engagement

Education Systems



Public Information
SCDOI Website 



Division Challenges 
& Successes

• Hiring Salaries
• Competition From Other Divisions 
• Professional Development
• Career Paths 



ACTUARIAL 
& MARKET 
SERVICES 
DIVISION

This Division is responsible for 
reviewing policy form, rate,  and rule 
f il ings from insurers that provide 
property,  casualty, l ife,  accident and 
health products.

Karl Bitzky, Deputy Director, Actuarial & Market 
Services

This Division also provides 
actuarial  analyses to all  program 
areas,  notably ratemaking and 
reserving.  



Karl Bitzky
Market Services Division/

Deputy
60026028-AH45

South Carolina Department of Insurance 
Division of Actuarial & Market Services

Jerusha Mention
Rates Analyst- P&C

60026029-AP09

H. Loretta Brown
Rates Analyst- P&C

60026131-AP09

Dominic Rovelli
Rates Analyst- P&C

60026141-AP09

Matthew Watts
Rates Analyst- P&C

60025837-AP09

Daniel Tedeschi
Rates Analyst

60025931-AP09

Glynda Daniels
Program Manager I
LA&H Supervisor
60026048-AH45

Amanda Smiley
LA&H Rates Analyst

60025727-AP09

Anamaria Burg
Program Manager I
Assistant Actuary
60026040-AH45

Dylan Doceti
LA&H Rates Analyst

61109823 -AP09

Vacant
LA &H Rates Analyst-

60026132-AP09

Nicole Bremner
Intern-Temp

Program Assistant
61153124-AH30 (UZ01)

Walker Bailey
Intern 

61156917-AH30 UZ01

Guolee Zhong
Intern 

61156918-AH30 UZ01

Angela Fang
Rates Analyst- P&C

60026029-AP09

Karl Bitzky
Actuarial Services Division/

Deputy
60026028-AH45

Willie Davis
Actuary (P&C)

Actuary
60026128-UA60

Andreea Savu
Actuary (LA&H)

Actuary
60026126-AP20

Emily Gatenby
Actuary

60026125-UA60



RATES AND FORMS

Life, Accident & Health
The Life, Accident and Health Unit reviews and analyzes rates, rules, forms, 
and certifications for life, accident, and health insurance products including 
products offered by health maintenance organizations (HMOs).

In 2022, the Department withdrew from the Interstate Insurance Product 
Regulation Compact.  The Department now conducts reviews in-house.

Property & Casualty
The Property and Casualty Unit reviews and analyzes rates, rules, and forms for 
property and casualty insurance products such as automobile, workers’ 
compensation, and homeowners insurance. 



Rate Review Standards

File and Use

Insurers must obtain 
approval from the 

Department before 
implementing any rate 

changes.

Prior Approval

The statute doesn’t require 
insurers to file their rates 
with the Department, or 
they are not considered 
subject to Prior Approval

Exempt

Insurers file rate changes 
with the Department and 
the changes take effect 
unless the DOI rejects 

them.



Rate Review Standards

File and Use

Insurers file rate changes 
with the Department and 
the changes take effect 
unless the DOI rejects 

them.

• Only allowable on personal lines 
Automobile, Fire, Allied, Homeowners

• Must be between +/-7% overall rate change

• Must provide an effective date at least 30 
days after submission

• May only be used once in a twelve-month 
period





The LAH Division reviews and approves the rates for individual and group accident and health 
products. This includes:

• Major Medical (Individual and Group)
• Medicare Supplement (Individual and Group)
• Individual Supplemental Accident and Health policies (i.e. Specified Disease Policies, 

Accidental Death and Dismemberment, Disability Income)
• Long Term Care (Individual and Group)

• SC Bulletin 2003-13 exempts some rates and forms from prior approval.  These still have to 
be filed, but do not undergo the same level of review as the lines above.  

• These lines include life forms, annuity forms, group supplemental products, and 
individual supplemental product forms.

• These are exempt from prior approval due to the general uniformity of the policy forms 
for the products.

• Life and Annuity rates are not filed as the market generally regulates these due to 
market/investment conditions and morbidity tables



Code of Laws and Regulations used for review of Life, Accident, and Health products:

• Title 38, Chapter 71: Accident and Health Insurance (Individual and Group)
• SC Regulation 69-46 is used as well for Medicare Supplement Insurance
• Federal regulations are used as required for compliance with Affordable Care Act laws 

and directives
• Title 38, Chapters 63 & 65: Individual and Group Life Insurance
• Title 38, Chapter 69: Individual Annuities

• Group Annuities do not have to be filed in South Carolina as most of these are group 
retirement plans and are regulated at the federal level by the SEC

• Title 38, Chapter 72 & Regulation 69-44: Long Term Care Insurance
• Title 38, Chapter 103: Paid Family Leave Insurance

• This list is not exhaustive as various other statues and regulations may also apply to a filing.

• Review checklists are based on the applicable statutes and regulations and are continually 
being updated to reflect current and emerging changes and trends.



The P&C Division reviews and approves the rates for personal lines products and other lines as 
required by statute. This includes:

• Property and Dwelling
• Personal Farmowners
• Homeowners
• Inland Marine – (pet insurance, travel coverage, boatowners)
• Medical Malpractice
• Personal Earthquake
• Workers’ Compensation
• Personal Umbrella
• Private Passenger Automobile

• SC Code of Laws Section 38-73-340 and 38-73-520 outline rate filings required. These code 
sections exclude inland marine risks which by general custom are not written according to 
manual rates or rating plans and exempt commercial policies from the filing requirements.

• Medical Malpractice and Workers Compensation are not generally considered personal lines 
but are subject to rate review per SC Code of Regulations 69-64 and SC Code of Laws 
Section 38-73-525, respectively.



• Commercial rates are largely exempt from the rate review process. 

• SC Code of Regulations 69-64 provides the following definition: ‘‘Exempt commercial policies’’ means all 
policies for commercial lines, as opposed to personal lines, insurance issued to commercial insureds, 
including all lines of commercial fire and allied insurance, inland marine insurance, commercial multi-peril 
insurance, casualty insurance including workers’ compensation insurance, fidelity insurance and 
commercial automobile insurance. Insurance related to credit transactions written through financial 
institutions is not included within the definition of ‘‘exempt commercial policies.’’ Professional liability 
insurance for physician and health care providers is not included within the definition of ‘‘exempt 
commercial policies.’’

• As noted previously, Workers’ Compensation was later made subject to Prior Approval in SC Code Section 38-73-
525.

• We believe the consensus was that commercial insureds tend to be more sophisticated, have greater access to 
resources, and require less regulator protection. The Department’s complaint reporting services are still 
available to these insureds and commercial insurers are still subject to the laws in Title 38.

Exempt Lines of Business



• The number of rate increases that an insurer may file are limited by statute.

• Medicare Supplement products are required to file annually per SC Code of Regulations 69-46.
• Other Life and Health products are generally limited to one rate increase in a twelve-month period.

• Most Property and Casualty lines of insurance are restricted to one rate increase in a twelve-month period by SC 
Code of Laws Section 38-73-920.

• Personal Automobile and Homeowners/Property lines of insurance can request up to two rate increases, though 
there are some limitations.
• SC Code of Laws 38-73-905(C) allows automobile insurers to file for two rate increases in a twelve-month 

period (law change in 2021)
• SC Code of Laws Sections 38-73-220 and 38-73-260 allow fire, allied lines, and homeowners insurers to file for 

two rate increases in a twelve-month period only if both requests are less than +7%. If the insurer requests a 
rate increase that exceeds +7% overall, they are limited to one increase in the twelve-month period

• There are no limits on the number of rate decreases that an insurer may file.

Rate Filing Frequency



Rate Filing Frequency

• Homeowners and Property insurers may not submit a rate filing that 
results in a policyholder receiving more than a +45% at renewal

• This applies whether the insurer files for one or two rate increases in 
a twelve-month period

• An insured’s premium may increase more than +45% at renewal if 
there are other exposure changes, such as an increase in coverage 
amount or the aging of the roof



SC Department of Consumer Affairs

SC Code of Laws 38-73-240, 38-73-260, and 38-73-
525 require certain filings to also be sent to the 

Consumer Advocate’s office

Workers Compensation Any Loss Cost 
Multiplier change

Fire, Allied Lines, and 
Homeowners

Rate increases above 
+7%

More than $10 million 
in earned premium

Reviews are conducted 
simultaneously but 

separately



Automobile Rates

Automobile

Number of Filings 
Not Approved

Number of 
Companies w/ 

Rate Neutral 
Approved

Number of 
Companies w/ 

Rate Decreases 
Approved

Number of 
Companies w/ 
Rate Increases 

Approved

Number of 
Company Rate 

Change Requests 
Approved

Unique Company 
Count Submitting Rate 

Change Requests

Premium 
Weighted Rate 

Change Approved

Premium 
Weighted Rate 

Change Requested
Year

569224613783-0.3%-0.3%
2020

121731836227930.7%1.1%
2021

3827108197965.7%6.0%
2022

57531101881027.1%7.5%
2023

6114295211955.1%6.5%
2024

315135239596046919.4%22.4%
Cumulative 

Rate Change



-1.00%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

PPA Rate Changes

Premium Weighted Rate Change Requested Premium Weighted Rate Change Approved



Homeowners

Number of 
Filings Not 
Approved

Number of 
Companies w/ 
Rate Neutral 

Approved

Number of 
Companies w/ 

Rate 
Decreases 
Approved

Number of 
Companies w/ 
Rate Increases 

Approved

Number of 
Company Rate 

Change 
Requests 
Approved

Unique 
Company 

Count 
Submitting 

Rate Change 
Requests

Premium 
Weighted Rate 

Change 
Approved

Premium 
Weighted Rate 

Change 
Requested

Year

63485092732.7%3.1%2020

1635135098792.6%3.0%2021

152635584674.7%4.7%2022

82086391695.8%5.8%2023

43156605412.6%13.6%2024

491183327442534231.4%33.7%
Cumulative Rate Change

Homeowners Rates



0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

SC Homeowners Rate Increases

Requested Approved



Workers’ Compensation

Average LCM Change

NCCI LC Filings

Rate ChangeSERFF #Year

4.45%
-10.50%NCCI-1321189272020

1.44%
-6.60%NCCI-1325625372021

0.70%
-9.80%NCCI-1330157672022

4.37%
-9.70%NCCI-1334227872023

-0.94%
-4.80%NCCI-1338523022024

Undetermined
0.00%NCCI-1342882062025

-3.7%Cumulative Adoption Impact X Cumulative LCM 
Impact

Workers’ Compensation Rates



Number of 
Filings 

Approved as 
Amended

Number of 
Filings 

Approved as 
Filed

Number of Rate 
Decreases 
Proposed

Number of Rate 
Increases 
Proposed

Number of 
Companies 

Requesting LCM 
Change

Year

129516911072020

15742762892021

4873655912022

117216182023

1241213252024

Workers’ Compensation Rates



RATEMAKING 
CASE STUDY



INTRODUCTION

Goal of Ratemaking

• To set insurance rates such that the premium charged will cover anticipated losses and 
expenses while allowing for a reasonable profit

Fundamental Insurance Equation

• Premium = Losses + Expenses + Profit

Review to ensure rates are not inadequate, excessive, or unfairly discriminatory.



RATE LEVEL INDICATION

What the DOI receives and reviews when an insurance carrier 
submits a rate change request.



RATE LEVEL INDICATION

• The goal of the rate level indication 
calculation is to determine the 
appropriateness of the company’s current 
rates.  

• It takes into account the company’s 
premium, losses, expenses, and profit.  

• Ratemaking is prospective, but based on a 
company’s historical data that has been 
adjusted for changes such as:

• Present Level Premium

• Trend

• Loss Development

• Loss Adjustment Expenses

• These adjustments are needed to bring all 
data to the same level.



RATE LEVEL INDICATION

• The DOI developed exhibits for companies to utilize if they desire

• The exhibits allow for a uniform presentation of material which aids the review 
process

• The review process involves verification of the various adjustments and 
ensuring adequate support and justification has been provided 





PRESENT LEVEL FACTOR

• Historical premiums may have been written at different rate levels due to rate changes.

• Since we are evaluating the current rates, historical premiums must be adjusted to 
look as if they were written at today’s rates.





PREMIUM TREND

• Historical premium needs to be adjusted to account for the change in average 
premium level. Changes in average premium can be referred to as shifts in the 
mix of business.

• To account for these shifts in the portfolio’s mix of business, historical 
premiums must be adjusted to reflect the anticipated mix.  

• This could be due to more insureds purchasing higher limits, a higher 
percentage of the book of business moving toward multi-driver/multi-vehicle, 
or the acquisition of an agent’s book that contains risks different from what the 
company was previously writing



PREMIUM TREND

228

230

232

234

236

238

240

242

244

246

248

Bodily Injury Premium Trend

4pt 0.4%
8pt 0.2%
12pt 0.0%
16pt -0.2%
20pt -0.3%



PREMIUM TREND

3/31/2020 -0.3% 4 0.988 0.3% 2.25 1.007 0.995
3/31/2021 -0.3% 3 0.991 0.3% 2.25 1.007 0.998
3/31/2022 -0.3% 2 0.994 0.3% 2.25 1.007 1.001
3/31/2023 -0.3% 1 0.997 0.3% 2.25 1.007 1.004
3/31/2024 -0.3% 0 1.000 0.3% 2.25 1.007 1.007

Projected 
Premium 

Trend Factor

Premium 
Trend Factor

Historical 
Trend Period

Historical 
Premium 

Trend Factor

Calendar 
Year

Selected 
Historical 
Premium 

Trend

Selected 
Prospective 

Premium 
Trend

Projected 
Trend Period





LAE PROVISION

• Amounts paid by the insurance company 
to investigate and settle claims are called 
loss adjustment expenses (LAE)

• We must account for the costs incurred 
by a company during the claim settlement 
process.  

• Companies typically provide 3 or 5 years 
of data





LOSS DEVELOPMENT FACTOR

• Historical claims are at varying levels of maturity.  Some are settled, some have 
been opened for a while, some have only recently been opened, and some 
losses have occurred but not yet been reported to the insurer.

• Over time, the losses attributed to claims may change several times before 
settlement as additional information becomes available.

• The indication needs to estimate all the losses that will be incurred, it is 
necessary to project historical losses to their ultimate value.



LOSS DEVELOPMENT FACTOR





LOSS TREND

• Also referred to as Pure Premium Trend.

• A measure of changes in the rate at which claims occur (frequency) and the 
average cost of claims (severity).

• Claim frequencies and severities are both impacted by underlying factors such 
as monetary inflation, increasing repair costs or medical costs, or advancements 
in safety technology that may influence total costs over time.



LOSS TREND

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Bodily Injury Loss Trend

4pt 25.1%
8pt 20.1%
12pt 12.4%
16pt 6.8%
20pt 2.6%



LOSS TREND

3/31/2020 4.0% 4 1.170 12.0% 2.25 1.290 1.510
3/31/2021 4.0% 3 1.125 12.0% 2.25 1.290 1.452
3/31/2022 4.0% 2 1.082 12.0% 2.25 1.290 1.396
3/31/2023 4.0% 1 1.040 12.0% 2.25 1.290 1.342
3/31/2024 4.0% 0 1.000 12.0% 2.25 1.290 1.290

Projected 
Loss Trend 

Factor

Loss Trend 
Factor

Calendar 
Year

Selected 
Historical 

Loss Trend

Historical 
Trend Period

Historical 
Loss Trend 

Factor

Selected 
Prospective 
Loss Trend

Projected 
Trend Period





FIXED EXPENSES

• Fixed expenses are assumed to be the same for each risk and do not vary with 
premium

• Typically costs associated with overhead; commonly categorized as Other 
Acquisition Expenses and General Expenses.

• Other Acquisition - expenses that are paid to acquire business other than 
commissions and brokerage expenses. Costs associated with media advertisements, 
mailings to prospective insureds, and salaries of sales employees who do not work on 
a commission basis are included in this category.

• General - include the remaining expenses associated with insurance operations and 
any other miscellaneous costs, excluding investment income expenses



FIXED EXPENSES



FIXED EXPENSES





VARIABLE EXPENSES

• Variable expenses vary directly with premium; the expense is a constant 
percentage of the premium.

• The most common examples are taxes and commissions.

• Taxes, Licenses, and Fees - include all taxes and miscellaneous fees due from the 
insurer excluding federal income taxes.

• Commissions and Brokerage - amounts paid to agents or brokers as compensation for 
generating business.



VARIABLE EXPENSES



VARIABLE EXPENSES





INDICATED CHANGE

• Considered the raw indication, before assigning credibility

• Projected losses plus fixed expenses, divided by one minus variable expense and 
profit

• Indication =

• This demonstrates the amount the company would need to increase the rates 
to cover their expected losses and expenses

(93% + 11.7%)
(1 - 13.0% - 5%)

-1 = 27.70%





CREDIBILITY

• Actuarial Standards of Practice (ASOP) 
No. 25 defines credibility as “measure of 
the predictive value in a given application 
that the actuary attaches to a particular 
set of data (predictive is used here in the 
statistical sense and not in the sense of 
predicting the future).”

• The goal is to limit the effect of random 
fluctuations in the data set

• A widely used industry standard for full 
credibility is 1,082 claims

• This standard establishes that 90% of the 
time, the observed experience is within 
+/-5% of its expected value

• In the given example, there have been 
1,020 claims in the data set, resulting in a 
credibility of 97.1%





COMPLEMENT OF CREDIBILITY

• Related experience that represents the weight given to other sources of 
information, as the credibility percentage is applied to the company’s data

• In situations of low credibility, the complement receives most of the weight in 
the indication

• In situations of full credibility, the company’s data is the only source that is 
considered, and the complement does not impact the indication

• Net trend is often used as a complement, as it measures the net impact of 
premium and loss trend patterns





CREDIBILITY WEIGHTED INDICATED 
RATE CHANGE

• Assigns the credibility weight (97.1%) to the company’s data and indicated 
change and assigns the remaining weight (2.9%) to the complement, in this case 
net trend of 11.7%

• Results in a Credibility Weighted Indicated Rate Change of +27.2%

• The company’s proposed change must be between 0% and the credibility 
weighted indicated rate change of +27.2%

• In the example, the company is requesting a proposed change of +11.6% which 
would fall in the acceptable range



PROPOSED FACTOR CHANGES

• Outside of base rate changes which impact all insureds, some companies will 
file to adjust segmentation.

• Segmentation is the process of grouping risks with similar loss potential and 
charging different manual rates to reflect differences in loss potential among 
the groups.

• Common examples are accident count, minor and major violations, age, model 
year, and territory.



PROPOSED FACTOR CHANGES

• When a singular factor or a small number of factors are changed, it is often 
through a process called a univariate analysis

• Generally considered easy to demonstrate the relationship to losses
• However, they do not take into account the interaction of the selected 

variables
• Below is an example of a univariate analysis for accident count

Accident 
Count Premiums Losses Credibility Loss Ratio Indication

Current 
Factor

Proposed 
Change

Proposed 
Factor

0 125,980,924.00      56,169,055.00         100% 44.6% 100.0% 1.0 0.00 1.0
1+ 19,531,048.00         10,182,799.00         100% 52.1% 116.9% 1.1 10% 1.155



PREDICTIVE MODELING

• When multiple rating variables or the whole rating plan is revised, it is often 
with the use of a predictive model, such as a generalized linear model (GLM)

• The term “predictive model” refers to a set of models that use statistics to 
predict outcomes

• These models simultaneously solve for the most accurate factor and 
automatically adjust for correlations among the variables.

• However, it is not always easy to understand the model output

• Validation of the models are provided, showing pricing improvements over the 
current rating plan



PREDICTIVE MODELING

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

 -

 1,000,000.00

 2,000,000.00

 3,000,000.00

 4,000,000.00

 5,000,000.00

 6,000,000.00

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Model Validation

Exposures Observed Losses Current Predicted Losses Proposed Predicted Losses



ACTUARIAL SERVICES

The Actuarial team assists 
with the production of several 

annual reports including:

• Coastal Property Report
• Workers’ Compensation 

Report
• Effects of Changes to Tort 

Law Report (Medical 
Malpractice)

• Family Leave Report
• Liability Report

STATUTORY AND 
LEGISLATIVE REPORTS

ENSURING REGULATORY 
COMPLIANCE

The Actuarial team also works 
with different divisions of the 
department to assess risk, 
evaluate reserves, and review 
proposed rates to ensure they 
are adequate, not excessive, 
and not unfairly discriminatory.  



Challenges & Successes
• Recruitment and retention
• Advancements in technology and artificial intelligence
• Data collection challenges
• Increasing complexity of insurance rating structures



Key Topics



• Insurance companies, just like the companies in any industry, can pull mass quantities of information 
together about consumers. For an element to be approved in a rating plan, relevant actuarial support 
must be provided that proves the characteristics measured are statistically significant.

• Cancellation and non-renewal notices require the specific reason for the action taken to be listed, and 
we have not received any complaints or inquiries regarding AI or data mining sourced information as 
the cause of action to be taken against a consumer.

• Per SC Code of Laws Section 38-73-80, no organization may willfully or knowingly give false or 
misleading information to the department which will affect the rates or premiums chargeable. The use 
of any fraudulent information to generate a rate increase is illegal.

AI & Data Mining



• Our department does not track which carriers do or do not utilize drones or satellite imagery to determine an insured’s risk and influence 
premium. 

• The use of a drone for roof inspection has the potential to reduce the risk of bodily harm to an individual who otherwise would be required to 
climb the roof and perform a manual inspection.

• Insurance companies that utilize satellite imagery to score a roof or otherwise influence an insured’s premium are asked to explain how they 
communicate the use of the technology to the insured and how they outline the dispute process to an insured. 

• Our department requests insurers to be transparent with the use of such methods, but our department has no regulatory authority over third 
party data providers.

• Insurance companies are required to file their underwriting guidelines with our department upon request, per SC Code of Laws 38-75-1240, and 
they are not public information. An insurance company that wishes to switch their UW guidelines to utilize these tools for UW purposes does not 
require the approval of the department.

• There are no South Carolina laws governing the use of drones or satellite imagery. SC Code of Laws Section 38-75-1210 prohibits the following 
items from being considered when determining the premium rates for a property policy: race, color, creed, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, 
economic status, or income level.

• However, 38-75-1210(A)(4) states that nothing in this section prohibits an insurer from setting rates in accordance with relevant actuarial data.

Drones/Satellite Imagery 



SC ALIR System 
• The South Carolina (SC) Department of Motor 

Vehicles (DMV) originally implemented the South 
Carolina Automobile Liability Insurance Reporting 
(SC ALIR) System in March 2004. 

• This system collects automobile liability insurance 
information from insurers that are licensed to 
provide automobile liability insurance in the state. 

• The DMV cross-references the collected 
information to South Carolina driver and vehicle 
data to identify registered vehicles that do not 
meet the minimum automotive liability insurance 
requirements of the state. 

• The SC legislature passed the law requiring 
insurers to submit insurance information to SC 
DMV. 

• The SC ALIR Working Group oversees the system 
and decides on various issues concerning the 
implementation of the SC ALIR System. 



Web services: 

• Insurance companies insuring more than five hundred (500) vehicles in SC shall make their insurance verification web service available to 
SC ALIR. 

• The web services should follow the specifications and standards of the IICMVA. 
• The web services requirement applies to personal lines only, but insurance companies may make their commercial lines available 

voluntarily. 

Book of Business: 

• Insurance companies insuring vehicles in SC shall provide their Book of Business (BOB) data to SC ALIR on a weekly basis. 
• The BOB data format should follow the IICMVA’s standards and specifications. 
• Insurance companies submitting BOB data to SC ALIR must use the secure file transfer protocol.
• Both personal and commercial lines auto should be reported. 

SC ALIR System 

Reporting Requirements for Insurance Companies 



South Carolina Department of 
Insurance

1201 Main Street, Suite 1000
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 


	Agenda
	Minutes
	Agency Overview
	Agency Presentation



